
2017-01-26 Regular Meeting of the Board of
Directors

(Revised on 01/23/2017 at 3:25 pm)

Thursday, January 26, 2017 at 4:00 pm

Tahoe Truckee Unified School District (TTUSD)

11603 Donner Pass Road, Truckee CA 96161



AGENDA
 

12. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

13. MEDICAL STAFF REPORT

14.1. Approval of Meeting Minutes

14.2.1. Financial Report - November 2016.pdf
 

14.2. Financial Report

14.3.1. CIO Board Report - January 2017.pdf
 
14.3.2. CNO Board Report - January 2017.pdf
 

14.3. Staff Reports

2016-12-15 Regular BOD Meeting_DRAFT Minutes.pdf
 

14.2.2. Financial Report - December 2016.pdf
 

14. CONSENT CALENDAR

15.1.1. Debt Management Policy Resolution 2017-01.pdf
 
15.1.2. Debt Management Policy - ABD-25.pdf
 
15.1.3. Proposal - Umpqua Bank Signed.pdf
 
15.1.4. Credit Approval Letter.pdf
 
15.1.5. Fifth Supplemental Indenture of Trust.pdf
 
15.1.6. Fifth Supplemental Indenture of Trust Resolution 2017-
02.pdf
 

15.1. 2002 Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bond Refinancing

15. ITEMS FOR BOARD ACTION

16.1. TFHD Quality Program Overview.pdf
 
16.2. Disaster Level I Activation Summary.pdf

16. ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION

2017-01-26 Regular BOD Meeting_REVISED FINAL Agenda.pdf

ITEMS 1 - 11 See Agenda
 

12.1. Retirement of Chief Human Resources Officer, Jayne
O'Flanagan
No related materials at time of posting.

13.1. Medical Staff Report.pdf
 

14.3.3. COO Board Report - January 2017.pdf
 

15.1.7. Bond Purchase Agreement.pdf
 

Meeting Book - 2017-01-26 Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors

01/26/17 Agenda Packet Contents

Page 4

Page 7

Page 8

Page 14

Page 27

Page 57

Page 59

Page 61

Page 63

Page 71

Page 76

Page 81

Page 82

Page 110

Page 114

Page 131

Page 146

Page 2 of 156



18.1. 2017-01-23 Board Quality Committee_Agenda.pdf
 

18. BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS/RECOMMENDATIONS FOR
DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION

19. CEO INFORMATIONAL REPORT

26. MEETING EFFECTIVENESS ASSESSMENT

16.3. Board of Directors 2017 Commiittee Appointments.pdf

17. DISCUSSION OF CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS PULLED, IF
NECESSARY

18.2. 2017-01-25 Finance Committee_FINAL Agenda.pdf
 

19.1. CEO Board Report - January 2017.pdf
 

ITEMS 20 - 25: See Agenda

MeetingEvaluationForm.pdf
 

27. ADJOURN

Page 149

Page 150

Page 152

Page 154

Page 156

Page 3 of 156



Page 1 of 3 
 Denotes Action Item 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

AGENDA 
(Revised on 01/23/2017 at 3:09 p.m.) 

 

Thursday, January 26, 2017 at 4:00 p.m. 
Tahoe Truckee Unified School District (TTUSD) Office 

11603 Donner Pass Rd, Truckee, CA 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ROLL CALL 

 
3. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA 

 
4. INPUT AUDIENCE   

This is an opportunity for members of the public to comment on any closed session item appearing before the Board on this 
agenda. Please state your name for the record.  Comments are limited to three minutes.  Written comments should be 
submitted to the Clerk of the Board 24 hours prior to the meeting to allow for distribution.   

 
5. CLOSED SESSION   

5.1. Hearing (Health & Safety Code § 32155) 

Subject Matter: Report of quality assurance/medical audit committee  
 

5.2. Hearing (Health & Safety Code § 32155) 

Subject Matter: Report of quality assurance/medical audit committee  
 

5.3. TIMED ITEM – 5:30PM – Hearing (Health & Safety Code § 32155) 

Subject Matter: Medical Staff Credentials 
 

5.4. Approval of Closed Session Minutes 
12/15/2016 
 

6. DINNER BREAK 
APPROXIMATELY 6:00 P.M. 

 
7. OPEN SESSION – CALL TO ORDER 

 
8. REPORT OF ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 

 
9. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA 

 
10. INPUT – AUDIENCE  

This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on items which are not on the agenda.  Please state 
your name for the record.  Comments are limited to three minutes.  Written comments should be submitted to the Board 
Clerk 24 hours prior to the meeting to allow for distribution.  Under Government Code Section 54954.2 – Brown Act, the 
Board cannot take action on any item not on the agenda.  The Board may choose to acknowledge the comment or, where 
appropriate, briefly answer a question, refer the matter to staff, or set the item for discussion at a future meeting. 

Page 4 of 156



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
January 26, 2017 REVISED AGENDA– Continued 

 

Page 2 of 3 

 Denotes Action Item 

 

11. INPUT FROM EMPLOYEE ASSOCIATIONS 
This is an opportunity for members of the Employee Associations to address the Board on items which are not on the agenda.  
Please state your name for the record.  Comments are limited to three minutes.   

 
12. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 

12.1. Retirement of Chief Human Resources Officer, Jayne O’Flanagan 
 

13. MEDICAL STAFF REPORT 
13.1. Medical Staff Report ..................................................................................................... ATTACHMENT 

 
14. CONSENT CALENDAR 

These items are expected to be routine and non-controversial.  They will be acted upon by the Board without discussion.  
Any Board Member, staff member or interested party may request an item to be removed from the Consent Calendar for 
discussion prior to voting on the Consent Calendar. 

14.1. Approval of Minutes of Meetings 
12/15/2016 ..................................................................................................................... ATTACHMENT 

14.2. Financial Report 
14.2.1. Financial Report- November 2016 ...................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
14.2.2. Financial Report- December 2016 ....................................................................... ATTACHMENT 

14.3. Staff Reports 
14.3.1. CIO Board Report ................................................................................................. ATTACHMENT 
14.3.2. CNO Board Report ............................................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
14.3.3. COO Board Report ............................................................................................... ATTACHMENT 

 
15. ITEMS FOR BOARD ACTION 

15.1. 2002 Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bond Refinancing 
Gary Hicks will present documents related to the refunding of the District’s 2002 Variable Rate Demand 
Revenue Bonds. 

15.1.1. Debt Management Policy ............................................................................................ ATTACHMENT 
15.1.2. Debt Management – Resolution 2017-01 ................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
15.1.3. Umpqua Bank Proposal ............................................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
15.1.4. Umpqua Bank Credit Approval Letter ......................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
15.1.5. Fifth Supplemental Indenture of Trust ........................................................................ ATTACHMENT 
15.1.6. Fifth Supplemental Indenture – Resolution 2017-02 .................................................. ATTACHMENT 
15.1.7. Bond Purchase Agreement .......................................................................................... ATTACHMENT 

 
16. ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION 

16.1. TFHD Quality Program Overview ........................................................................................ ATTACHMENT 
The Board of Directors will receive a presentation on the District’s overall quality program. 

16.2. Disaster Level I Activation Summary ................................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
The Board of Directors will review a summary of the Disaster Level I Activation during the 
recent winter storm. 

16.3. Board of Directors 2017 Committee Appointments ........................................................... ATTACHMENT 
Board President will review the 2017 Committee Appointments. 
 

Page 5 of 156



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
January 26, 2017 REVISED AGENDA – Continued 

 

Page 3 of 3 

 Denotes Action Item 

17. DISCUSSION OF CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS PULLED, IF NECESSARY 
 

18. BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS/RECOMMENDATIONS FOR DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION 
18.1. Quality Committee Meeting – 01/23/2017 ....................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
18.2. Finance Committee Meeting – 01/23/2017 ...................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
18.3. Community Benefit Committee Meeting – No meeting held in January. 
18.4. Governance Committee Meeting – No meeting held in January. 
18.5. Personnel Committee Meeting – No meeting held in January. 
 

19. CEO INFORMATIONAL REPORT 
19.1. CEO Strategic Updates ....................................................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
 CEO will provide updates related to his key strategic initiatives. 
 

20. AGENDA INPUT FOR UPCOMING COMMITTEE MEETINGS 
 

21. ITEMS FOR NEXT MEETING 
-Discussion of a Special Meeting to address CEO Incentive Compensation and Performance Review 
Criteria 
 
22. BOARD MEMBERS REPORTS/CLOSING REMARKS 

 
23. CLOSED SESSION CONTINUED, IF NECESSARY 

 
24. OPEN SESSION  

 
25. REPORT OF ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION, IF NECESSARY 

26. MEETING EFFECTIVENESS ASSESSMENT ..................................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
The Board will identify and discuss any occurrences during the meeting that impacted the effectiveness 
and value of the meeting. 
 

27. ADJOURN   
 

 

 

 

The next regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District is February 23, 2017 at 11603 
Donner Pass Rd., Truckee, CA. A copy of the Board meeting agenda is posted on the District’s web site (www.tfhd.com) at 
least 72 hours prior to the meeting or 24 hours prior to a Special Board Meeting. 

*Denotes material (or a portion thereof) may be distributed later. 

Note:  It is the policy of Tahoe Forest Hospital District to not discriminate in admissions, provisions of services, hiring, training and employment practices on 
the basis of color, national origin, sex, religion, age or disability including AIDS and related conditions. 

Equal Opportunity Employer. The meeting location is accessible to people with disabilities.  Every reasonable effort will be made to accommodate 
participation of the disabled in all of the District’s public meetings.  If particular accommodations for the disabled are needed (i.e., disability-related aids or 
other services), please contact the Executive Assistant at 582-3481 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

Page 6 of 156

http://www.tfhd.com/


 
 
TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT 

 
MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

 
   CONFIDENTIAL  
   PLEASE DO NOT REPRODUCE OR DISTRIBUTE   
  This is a Medical Staff Committee document protected by Sec. 1157 of the Calif. Evidence Code  
 

MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
Thursday, January 26, 2017 

 
 

REFERRED BY: 
 

AGENDA ITEMS 
 

RECOMMEND 
 

 
MEDICAL STAFF During the January 19, 2017 meeting of the Medical Executive Committee, a motion was made, 

seconded, and carried to recommend approval of the following to the Board of Directors: 
1. Department II 

(Surgery/Anesthesia) 
The Department II meeting recommends approval to the revision of the 
following privilege forms: 

 Orthopedic Surgery 
 Podiatry 
 General Surgery 

Fluoroscopy requirements were added to forms 

Recommend approval 

 

Page 7 of 156



 

Page 1 of 6 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

DRAFT MINUTES 
 

Thursday, December 15, 2016 at 4:00 p.m. 
Tahoe Truckee Unified School District (TTUSD) Office 

11603 Donner Pass Rd, Truckee, CA 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
Meeting was called to order at 4:00 p.m. 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
Board:    Charles Zipkin, M.D., Board President; Gregory Jellinek, M.D., Vice President; Dale 
Chamblin, Treasurer; (quorum present) 
 
Staff:  Harry Weis, Chief Executive Officer; Crystal Betts, Chief Financial Officer; Jake Dorst, Chief 
Information Officer; Judy Newland, Chief Operating Officer; Karen Baffone, Chief Nursing Officer; 
Janet Van Gelder, Director of Quality and Regulations; Ted Owens, Executive Director of Governance 
and Business Development; Sarah Jackson, Executive Assistant; Jean Steinberg, Director of Medical 
Staff; Jeff Dodd, MD, Chief of Staff; Scott Baker, Executive Director of Physician Services;  Shawni 
Coll, DO; Alyce Wong; Randy Hill; Chris Arth, MD; Karen Sessler, MD; Paige Thomason, Director of 
Marketing; Alex Maclennan, Director of Human Resources; Jason Grosdidier;  Stephanie Hanson, 
Compliance Department; Tammi Allowitz, Contract Coordinator;  
 
Other:  David Ruderman, Assistant General Counsel; Dr. Gregg Paul; Randy Hill;  
 
3. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA 
None. 
 
4. INPUT AUDIENCE 
No public comment was received.  
 
5. BOARD MEMBER REORGANIZATION 
Alyce Wong and Randy Hill received and signed the Oath of Office. 
 
Open Session recessed at 4:05 p.m. 
 
6. CLOSED SESSION   
Discussion was held on privileged items. 
 
7. DINNER BREAK 

APPROXIMATELY 6:00 P.M. 
 

8. OPEN SESSION – CALL TO ORDER 
Open Session reconvened at 6:00 p.m. 
 

Page 8 of 156



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
December 15, 2016 DRAFT MINUTES – Continued 

 

Page 2 of 6 

9. REPORT OF ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
No reportable action was taken on Items 6.1, 6.2, 6.3, and 6.4.  Items 6.5 and 6.6 were approved by 
the Board of Directors by unanimous vote.   
 
10. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA 
 
11. INPUT – AUDIENCE  
None public comment was received.  
 

12. INPUT FROM EMPLOYEE ASSOCIATIONS 
No public comment was received. 
 
13. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 

13.1. TFHD Board of Directors Recognition of Service. Dr. Karen Sessler was recognized for her 16 
years of service as a TFHD Board Member.  Mr. John Mohun was recognized for his 6 years of 
service as a TFHD Board Member.   
13.2. Ann Ajari was awarded TFHD’s December Employee of the Month. 
13.3. Ann Ajari was awarded TFHD’s Employee of the Year.  

 
14. MEDICAL STAFF REPORT  

14.1. The Medical Staff Report and recommendations were reviewed by Dr. Dodd.  
Discussion was held. 
 

ACTION:    Motion made by Director Zipkin seconded by Director Jellinek, to accept the 
Medical Staff Report as presented. 

No public comment received. 
 AYES: Directors Wong, Jellinek, Zipkin, Hill, Chamblin 
 NAYS: None 
 Abstention: None 
  

15. CONSENT CALENDAR 
These items are expected to be routine and non-controversial.  They will be acted upon by the Board without discussion.  
Any Board Member, staff member or interested party may request an item to be removed from the Consent Calendar 
for discussion prior to voting on the Consent Calendar. 

15.1. Approval of Minutes of Meetings 
11/17/2016 

15.2. Staff Reports  
15.2.1. CIO Report 
15.2.2. CNO Report 
15.2.3. COO Report  

15.3. Contracts 
15.3.1. Shawni Coll, DO; CMO Administrative Services Agreement 
15.3.2. North Tahoe Anesthesia Group Amendment 
15.3.3. Jacob Black, MD; Pain Management PSA 
15.3.4. Andrew Ringnes, MD; On Call Coverage Agreement Amendment 
15.3.5. Joseph Logan Norris, BOCO; Independent Contractor Agreement 

15.4. IVCH Foundation Board Members 

Page 9 of 156



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
December 15, 2016 DRAFT MINUTES – Continued 

 

Page 3 of 6 

 
Item 15.3.1. was pulled for discussion.  Item 15.3.3 was pulled from the agenda.  

 
ACTION:    Motion made by Director Chamblin, seconded by Director Hill, to accept the 

Consent Calendar as amended. 
   No discussion was held.  

AYES: Directors Wong, Jellinek, Zipkin, Hill, Chamblin 
NAYS: None 
Abstention: None 

 
16. ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION 

16.1. Tahoe Institute for Rural Health Research  
The Board of Directors will consider for approval an increase to TIRHR, LLC line of credit and 
operational plan.  
 

Discussion was held. 
 

ACTION:    Motion made by Director Jellinek, seconded by Director Chamblin, to increase 
the TIRHR, LLC line of credit to a total of $3,000,000 with all future 
expenditures to the line of credit being approved by Mr. Weis, CEO.  
AYES: Directors Wong, Jellinek, Zipkin, Hill, Chamblin 
NAYS: None 
Abstention: None 

 
16.2. Patient Navigation Update  

The Board of Directors will receive an update on Patient Navigation activities within the 
District.  
 

Discussion was held. 
 

16.3. Contracts 
16.3.1. Moss Adams Letter Agreement and PSA  
 

Discussion was held. 
 
ACTION:    Motion made by Director Jellinek, seconded by Director Zipkin, to direct 

Administration to execute the Letter Agreement and PSA not to exceed 
approximately $37,000.  
AYES: Directors Wong, Jellinek, Zipkin, Hill, Chamblin 
NAYS: None 
Abstention: None 
 

16.3.2. Master Services Agreement: TFHD services provided to TFHCS  
CFO reviewed Tahoe Forest Healthcare Services, the infrastructure requirements and the services 
needed to provide to each other.  
 

Page 10 of 156



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
December 15, 2016 DRAFT MINUTES – Continued 

 

Page 4 of 6 

Discussion was held. 
 
ACTION:    Motion made by Director Zipkin, seconded by Director Chamblin, to direct 

Administration to execute the Master Services Agreement.  
AYES: Directors Wong, Jellinek, Zipkin, Hill, Chamblin 
NAYS: None 
Abstention: None 

 
16.3.3. Master Services Agreement: Services provided by TFHCS to TFHD 

 
Discussion was held. 

 
ACTION:    Motion made by Director Chamblin, seconded by Director Zipkin, to direct 

Administration to execute the Master Services Agreement.  
AYES: Directors Wong, Jellinek, Zipkin, Hill, Chamblin 
NAYS: None 
Abstention: None 

  
16.4. 2017 CMS Core Measure Quality Metric Review 

The Board of Directors received an informational report on the proposed 2017 CMS Core Measure 
Quality Metrics.  

 
Discussion was held. 
 

16.5. Resolution 2016-11 Incentive Compensation to CEO  
The Board of Directors reviewed and considered for approval a resolution authorizing the payment 
of incentive compensation to the CEO pursuant to the CEO’s Employment Agreement for fiscal year 
2016. 

 
Discussion was held. 

 
ACTION:    Motion made by Director Chamblin, seconded by Director Zipkin, to accept and 

approve Resolution 2016-11.  
AYES: Directors Wong, Jellinek, Zipkin, Hill, Chamblin 
NAYS: None 
Abstention: None 

 
16.6. Resolution 2016-12 Provide Initial Capitalization of Tahoe Forest Healthcare Services 

The Board of Directors reviewed and considered for approval a resolution authorizing the initial 
capitalization of Tahoe Forest Healthcare Services.  
 
Discussion was held. 

 
ACTION:    Motion made by Director Jellinek, seconded by Director Chamblin, to accept 

and approve resolution 2016-12. 
AYES: Directors Wong, Jellinek, Zipkin, Hill, Chamblin 

Page 11 of 156



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
December 15, 2016 DRAFT MINUTES – Continued 

 

Page 5 of 6 

NAYS: None 
Abstention: None 

 
17. DISCUSSION OF CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS PULLED, IF NECESSARY 
Item 15.3.1.  Shawni Coll, DO; Chief Medical Officer Administrative Services Agreement was 
continued. 
 
Discussion was held.  
 

ACTION:    Motion made by Director Zipkin, seconded by Director Wong, to approve 
Administration to fully execute the CMO Administrative Services Agreement.  
AYES: Directors Wong, Jellinek, Zipkin, Hill, Chamblin 
NAYS: None 
Abstention: None 

 
18. BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS/RECOMMENDATIONS FOR DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION 

18.1. Community Benefit Committee Meeting – No meeting was held in December.  
18.2. Governance Committee Meeting – No meeting was held in December.  
18.3. Finance Committee Meeting – No meeting was held in December.  
18.4. Quality Committee Meeting – 11/22/2016.  
18.5. Personnel Committee Meeting – No meeting was held in November. 

 
19. INFORMATIONAL REPORTS 
These reports are provided for information only and not intended for discussion. Any Board Member may request discussion on 
an item, additional information from staff related to items included in a report, or request a topic be placed on a future agenda 
for further discussion. 

19.1. CEO Strategic Updates 
Discussion was held. 
 
20. ELECTION OF OFFICERS  

Election of the 2017 President of the Tahoe Forest Board of Directors will take place.  The 
new Board President will then preside over the election of the TFHD Vice President, 
Secretary, and Treasurer for the 2017 calendar year.  
 

Discussion was held. 
 
ACTION:    Motion made by Director Chamblin, seconded by Director Wong, to elect 

Director Zipkin as President of the Board for calendar year 2017.  
 

AYES: Directors Wong, Jellinek, Zipkin, Hill, Chamblin 
NAYS: None 
Abstention: None 
 

ACTION:    Motion made by Director Chamblin, seconded by Director Zipkin, to elect 
Director Jellinek as Vice-President of the Board for calendar year 2017.  
AYES: Directors Wong, Zipkin, Hill, Chamblin 

Page 12 of 156



Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
December 15, 2016 DRAFT MINUTES – Continued 

 

Page 6 of 6 

NAYS: None 
Abstention: Jellinek 
 

ACTION:    Motion made by Director Zipkin, seconded by Director Wong, to elect Director 
Hill as Secretary of the Board for calendar year 2017.  
AYES: Directors Wong, Jellinek, Zipkin, Hill, Chamblin 
NAYS: None 
Abstention: None 
 

ACTION:    Motion made by Director Hill, seconded by Director Jellinek, to elect Director 
Chamblin as Treasurer of the Board for calendar year 2017.  
AYES: Directors Wong, Jellinek, Zipkin, Hill, Chamblin 
NAYS: None 
Abstention: None 

 
21. BOARD COMMITTEE REVIEW 
Discussion was held.  
 
22. AGENDA INPUT FOR UPCOMING COMMITTEE MEETINGS 
 
23. ITEMS FOR NEXT MEETING 
-Board Member positions to certain committees will need to be reviewed and which committees are 
required by by-laws 

 
24. BOARD MEMBERS REPORTS/CLOSING REMARKS 
 
25. MEETING EFFECTIVENESS ASSESSMENT 
No discussion was held on this item. 
 
26. ADJOURN   
Meeting adjourned at 7:24 p.m. 

Page 13 of 156



Page 14 of 156



Page 15 of 156



Page 16 of 156



Page 17 of 156



Page 18 of 156



Page 19 of 156



Page 20 of 156



Page 21 of 156



Page 22 of 156



Page 23 of 156



Page 24 of 156



Page 25 of 156



Page 26 of 156



Page 27 of 156



Page 28 of 156



Page 29 of 156



Page 30 of 156



Page 31 of 156



Page 32 of 156



Page 33 of 156



Page 34 of 156



Page 35 of 156



Page 36 of 156



Page 37 of 156



Page 38 of 156



Page 39 of 156



Page 40 of 156



Page 41 of 156



Page 42 of 156



Page 43 of 156



Page 44 of 156



Page 45 of 156



Page 46 of 156



Page 47 of 156



Page 48 of 156



Page 49 of 156



Page 50 of 156



Page 51 of 156



Page 52 of 156



Page 53 of 156



Page 54 of 156



Page 55 of 156



Page 56 of 156



TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT •10121 PINE AVENUE • TRUCKEE, CA 96161 • 530/587-6011 

INCLINE VILLAGE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL • 880 ALDER AVENUE • INCLINE VILLAGE, NEVADA 89451-8215 •775/833-4100 

 

 
 

   
  Board Informational Report 

 
By: Jake Dorst  DATE:  1/16/2016 
 CIIO 
 
 
 
 
STRATEGIC INITIATIVE 4.3 
Develop a long-range IT EMR plan (3-10 years) to optimize potential strategic 
technology investments and execute after approval from the Board of Directors.  
 
Mercy Epic  

 Discovery meetings are almost complete where current state is analyzed. 
 Beginning demos of their build and weekly meetings for all modules to take current state 

to future state.  Many workflows to analyze.  Their build is looking good so far. 
 Have not started on Home Health and Hospice yet.  This is being scheduled. 
 Mercy on site next week for Ambulatory and IP Hardware assessments.   
 Mercy on site the following week for Training planning-meeting with all areas 

Pending Decisions Soft Blood Bank versus Mediware 
Pending Decisions OBIX vs GE for Fetal Monitoring 
Device Integration 

 NantHealth (Isirona) is the third party vendor for device integration  
 They will be onsite Jan 19th for our device walkthrough and plan 
 Integration of both EDs, ICU, PACUs, Anesthesia machines is planned 

Data Migration 
 Work underway for Master Patient Index loads from both OCHIN Epic and CPSI to 

Mercy Epic.  We are supplying the data files.   
 Epic has a complex formula for a step by step analysis to get the best working MPI for 

go live.  Will take months. 
 Batch load of all possible clinical data from OCHIN Epic to Mercy Epic: will include 

Allergies, Meds, Immunizations, Problem List at the field level 
 Boston Software is a possible solution for migration of other information.  Scope of work 

reviewed with Boston in an initial call.  Awaiting pricing.   

Interface Resource:  Mirth Contract 
 Scope of work fully defined except  

Finalizing all Premiere/Aperek interfaces 
GE Fetal Monitoring:  if we go that direction requires 4 interfaces 

 
 

Page 57 of 156



BoardofDirectors: 042611 BODAg 
 

Upgrades 
 Powerscribe 360 for Radiology almost complete.  Go live Feb 14 
 Varian testing underway.  Move to live in March 
 T Systems Hot Fix.  Had to cancel last week due to power outage.  Rescheduling. 

CancerLinQ 
 On site for go live and training on Jan 30th.  Impressive displays of our CC data. 
 They are complimentary about the quality of our Cancer Center documentation and say 

we are a “showpiece”.   

Return PBX to in house operators 

 Goal date is Monday 24th of January 
 New employee trained and completing training documentation for registration team 
 Working with Registration to train staff 
 Getting the consoles set up in ED and the front lobby 

 

Page 58 of 156



TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT •10121 PINE AVENUE • TRUCKEE, CA 96161 • 530/587-6011 

INCLINE VILLAGE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL • 880 ALDER AVENUE • INCLINE VILLAGE, NEVADA 89451-8215 •775/833-4100 

 

 
 

   
  Board CNO Report 

 
By: Karen Baffone, RN, MS  DATE:  January 2017 
 Chief Nursing Officer 
 
 
Strategy Two:  Choosing and implementing the correct new Electronic Health Record for 
our system that spans all physician, OP and IP services. Plus acquiring any other critical 
companion business operations software.  
 
Ongoing work within all department is in progress for the implementation of the EPIC EMR. 
Next steps is Epic’s clinical operational readiness (CORe) program that promotes long-term 
success of all clinical departments by engaging leadership for this program.  This program will 
create and implement goals and objectives for the install.  The CNO will serve as the lead of this 
program throughout the planning and implementation process. 
 
 Strategy Four:  Developing and implementing a comprehensive Care Coordination Plan 
coupled with Patient Navigation for all patients that touch our healthcare system. 
 
Orthopedic Services:  Completion of the Patient Education Guide and submitted for editing and 
printing for patient that attend the Joint Camp classes.  Working toward development of a 
marketing plan that will allow for improved communication both inside and outside the community.  
Plan to work with the Marketing Department to find an outside resource with the experience of 
orthopedic marketing. 
 
Navigation Services:  Patient Navigation implementation was delayed related to the winter storm 
and closed our non-clinical departments.  The “one call does it all” phone has been assigned.  Job 
descriptions and assignments for the lay navigators has been completed.  The Orthopedic Care 
Coordinator that will facilitate orthopedic services has been completed and will be posted in the up 
and coming week.  This position will allow for triage of both sports medicine as well as orthopedic 
cases that enter the system. 
 
The Joseph Family Center for Women and Newborn Care will look to expand services into the 
Care Coordination department.  This nurse will work to facilitate care for those patients that are in 
need of addition support (gestational diabetes etc) and lactation services.  Discussion with 
physician will occur in the January OB/PEDs section.  This transition will promote seamless care 
within the system and be an addition to the Care Coordination and Navigation programs already 
implemented. 
 
Strategy Five: “Just Do It” Continue to show measureable annual improvements in Quality, 
and Patient Satisfaction.  
 
Efforts to communicate strategies to improve patient satisfaction and the patient experience has 
been initially developed for implementation within the organization.  This is being done 
collaboratively with the COO to ensure that all departments are included in this strategy. 

Page 59 of 156



BoardofDirectors: 042611 BODAg 
 

AIDET is a framework for TFHD staff to communicate with patients and their families as well as 
with each other. It is a simple acronym that represents a very powerful way to communicate with 
people who are often nervous, anxious and feeling vulnerable. It can also be used as we 
communicate with other staff and colleagues, especially when we are providing an internal service.  
It is a piece of customer relations that will provide a standard of communication with all 
stakeholders.  AIDET was developed within the Studer Organization and have proved success and 
is best practice. 
 
 

Page 60 of 156



TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT •10121 PINE AVENUE • TRUCKEE, CA 96161 • 530/587-6011 

INCLINE VILLAGE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL • 880 ALDER AVENUE • INCLINE VILLAGE, NEVADA 89451-8215 •775/833-4100 

 

 
 

   
  Board COO Report 

 
By: Judith B. Newland  DATE: January 2017 
  
 
 
 
“Just Do It” – Demonstrate measurable improvements annually in both Quality and Patient Satisfaction. 
 
 
 
TFHS activated our Hospital Incident Command System (HICS) on Tuesday, January 10th in response to weather 
conditions that created power outages, closed major highways and created transportation challenges for staff.  
An emergency command center was opened in the Eskridge Conference Room and Karen Baffone, CNO, 
oversaw the command center as the Incident Commander.  We maintained ongoing communication with 
leadership, hospital and medical staff through conference calls, emails, and texts.  The command center stayed 
in place through January 10th until the power for the hospital came back up. IVCH did not have power for 10 
hours and TFH did not have power for 14 hours.   Ms. Baffone continued as the Incident Commander for 6 days 
to assure we continued monitoring of campus power outages, supplies, food, services, and housing for staff. The 
staff at  IVCH and TFHD were exceptional during this event.  Many staff members went above and beyond 
making themselves available to assist with staffing for those who could not make it into work.  The engineer 
department and others worked long hours to assure the facilities got back to normal.  TFHS has a remarkable 
and dedicated team and their commitment to serve our communities during this challenging time was 
extraordinary.    

 
TFHS is scheduling training for all staff to be educated on a communication framework with patients and their 
families as well as with each other.  Currently TFHS has no formal communication framework to assist staff in 
their daily work. This opportunity was identified with the implementation of the staff Gain Sharing program and 
supporting staff in improving patient satisfaction results. The framework includes when communicating with 
patients, families and each other to Acknowledge, Introduce, give Duration of service, Explanation, and end with 
a Thank You. It represents a powerful way to communicate with people who are often nervous, anxious and 
feeling vulnerable.  It can also be used as we communicate with other staff and colleagues, especially when we 
are providing a service.  Those who have utilized this framework consistently find it to be a tremendously 
valuable tool for organizing patient communication and providing patient with the information and caring 
relationship that they want and need.  
 
At Tahoe Forest Hospital, the Measure C project for South Building received approval for Stock and Staff from 
OSHPD which allows both the Dietary Department and Joseph Family Women and Newborn Care unit to begin 
stocking their departments with supplies and equipment.  Stock and Staff also allows use of the corridors and 
the helipad to be opened.  We are planning for the helipad opening late January after the storage container is 
removed, helipad policy and procedure is updated and staff responders are all educated on helipad safety.  We 
anticipate Temporary Certificate of Occupancy from OSHPD in February that will allow us to care for patients in 
the new area.     
 
 

Page 61 of 156



BoardofDirectors: 042611 BODAg 
 

The Pharmacy Department had their one day Sterile Compounding License inspection by the Board of Pharmacy 
January.  Congratulations to the pharmacy staff for passing the inspection and receiving no violations.  The 
pharmacy team along with support from the Engineering and EVS departments prepared for this inspection.  
Please give congratulation to our pharmacy team for this successful survey.  
 
Develop solid connections and relationships within the communities we serve.  

 
Karli Epstein begins January 23rd as the new IVCH Executive Director of Foundation and Community Outreach.  
Ms. Epstein brings experience in fund development and relationship management.  Her experience includes 
national and regional level responsibilities for the American Red Cross as the Field Fundraising and Marketing 
Associate and Chief Development Officer.  We are fortunate to have Ms. Epstein join our organization and 
please join me in welcoming her to our Health System team.    
.   

 

 

Page 62 of 156



Quint & Thimmig LLP 01/13/17 
 
 

 

TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-01 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE TAHOE FOREST 
HOSPITAL DISTRICT APPROVING A DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY 

 
 

RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Tahoe Forest Hospital 
District (the “District”), as follows: 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of section 8855(i) of the California Government 

Code, prior to the issuance or incurrence of any debt, the District is required to adopt local debt 
policies concerning the use of debt and that any proposed debt issuance is consistent with those 
local debt policies; and 

 
WHEREAS, a debt management policy has been developed for the District and the 

Board desires to adopt such policy in connection with any proposed debt issuance by the 
District; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby ORDERED and DETERMINED, as follows: 
 
Section 1. The debt management policy, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A (the 

“Debt Policy”), is hereby adopted by the Board for the District. The Debt Policy has been 
developed to provide guidance in the issuance and management of debt by the District or its 
related entities and is intended to comply with section 8855(i) of the California Government 
Code effective on January 1, 2017. The main objectives are to establish conditions for the use of 
debt, to ensure that debt capacity and affordability are adequately considered, to minimize the 
District’s interest and issuance costs, to maintain the highest possible credit rating, to provide 
complete financial disclosure and reporting and to maintain financial flexibility for the District. 

 
Section 2. The President of the Board, the Vice President of the Board, the Secretary of the 

Board, the Assistant Secretary of the Board, the Chief Executive Officer of the District, the Chief 
Financial Officer of the District, or any other person authorized by resolution of the Board to act 
on behalf of the District are hereby authorized and directed to take any actions and execute and 
deliver any and all documents as are necessary to accomplish the provisions and directives of 
this Resolution. 

 
Section 3. This Resolution shall be effective upon adoption by the Board. 
 

* * * * * * * * * * * 

Page 63 of 156



-2- 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at the meeting of the Tahoe Forest Hospital District Board of 
Directors held on the 26th day of January, 2017, by the following vote:  

 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
ABSTAIN: 

 
 
 
   

Charles Zipkin, M.D. 
President, Board of Directors 
Tahoe Forest Hospital District 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
   

Randy Hill 
Secretary, Board of Directors 

Tahoe Forest Hospital District 

Page 64 of 156



 

Exhibit A 
Page 3 

EXHIBIT A 
 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY 
 
 

This Debt Management Policy (the “Debt Policy”) of the TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL 
DISTRICT (the “District”) was approved by the Board of Directors of the District (the “Board”) 
on January 26, 2017. The Debt Policy may be amended by the Board as it deems appropriate 
from time to time in the prudent management of the debt of the District.  

 
This Debt Policy will also apply to any debt issued by any other public agency for which 

the Board of the District acts as its legislative body. 
 
The Debt Policy has been developed to provide guidance in the issuance and 

management of debt by the District or its related entities and is intended to comply with Section 
8855(i) of the California Government Code effective on January 1, 2017. The main objectives are 
to establish conditions for the use of debt; to ensure that debt capacity and affordability are 
adequately considered; to minimize the District’s interest and issuance costs; to maintain the 
highest possible credit rating; to provide complete financial disclosure and reporting; and to 
maintain financial flexibility for the District. 

 
Debt, properly issued and managed, is a critical element in any financial management 

program. It assists in the District’s effort to allocate limited resources to provide the highest 
quality of service to the public. The District understands that poor debt management can have 
ripple effects that hurt other areas of the District. On the other hand, a properly managed debt 
program promotes economic growth and enhances the vitality of the District for its residents 
and businesses. 

 
1. Findings 
 
This Debt Policy shall govern all debt undertaken by the District. The District hereby 

recognizes that a fiscally prudent debt policy is required in order to: 
 
• Maintain the District’s sound financial position. 
 
• Ensure the District has the flexibility to respond to changes in future service 

priorities, revenue levels, and operating expenses.  
 
• Protect the District’s credit-worthiness.  
 
• Ensure that all debt is structured in order to protect both current and future 

taxpayers, ratepayers and constituents of the District. 
 
• Ensure that the District’s debt is consistent with the District’s planning goals 

and objectives and capital improvement program or budget, as applicable. 
 
• Encourage those that benefit from a facility/improvement to pay the cost of 

Page 65 of 156



 

Exhibit A 
Page 4 

that facility/improvement without the need for the expenditure of limited general fund 
resources. 

 
2. Policies 
 

A. Purposes For Which Debt May Be Issued 
 
The District will consider the use of debt financing primarily for capital improvement 

projects (CIP) when the project’s useful life will equal or exceed the term of the financing and 
when resources are identified sufficient to fund the debt service requirements. An exception to 
this CIP driven focus is the issuance of short-term instruments such as tax and revenue 
anticipation notes, which are to be used for prudent cash management purposes and conduit 
financing, as described below. Bonded debt should not be issued for projects with minimal 
public benefit or support, or to finance normal operating expenses. 

 
If a department has any project which is expected to use debt financing, the department 

director is responsible for expeditiously providing the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief 
Financial Officer with reasonable cost estimates, including specific revenue accounts that will 
provide payment for the debt service. This will allow an analysis of the project’s potential 
impact on the District’s debt capacity and limitations. The department director shall also 
provide an estimate of any incremental operating and/or additional maintenance costs 
associated with the project and identify sources of revenue, if any, to pay for such incremental 
costs.  

 
 (i) Long-Term Debt. Long-term debt may be issued to finance or refinance the 

construction, acquisition, and rehabilitation of capital improvements and facilities, 
equipment and land to be owned and/or operated by the District.  

 
(a) Long-term debt financings are appropriate when the following conditions exist:  

 
• When the project to be financed is necessary to provide basic services. 
 
• When the project to be financed will provide benefit to constituents over 

multiple years.  
  
• When total debt does not constitute an unreasonable burden to the District 

and its taxpayers and ratepayers.  
 
• When the debt is used to refinance outstanding debt in order to produce 

debt service savings or to realize the benefits of a debt restructuring. 
 

(b) Long-term debt financings will not generally be considered appropriate for 
current operating expenses and routine maintenance expenses.  

 
(c) The District may use long-term debt financings subject to the following 

conditions: 
 

Page 66 of 156



 

Exhibit A 
Page 5 

• The project to be financed has been or will be approved by the Board.  
 
• The weighted average maturity of the debt (or the portion of the debt 

allocated to the project) will not exceed the average useful life of the project 
to be financed by more than 20%, unless specific conditions exist that 
would mitigate the extension of time to repay the debt and it would not 
cause the District to violate any covenants to maintain the tax-exempt 
status of such debt, if applicable. 

 
• The District estimates that sufficient income or revenues will be available to 

service the debt through its maturity.  
 
• The District determines that the issuance of the debt will comply with the 

applicable requirements of state and federal law. 
 
• The District considers the improvement/facility to be of vital, time-

sensitive need of the community and there are no plausible alternative 
financing sources 

 
(d) Periodic reviews of outstanding long-term debt will be undertaken to identify 

refunding opportunities. Refundings will be considered (within federal tax law 
constraints, if applicable) if and when there is a net economic benefit of the refunding. 
Refundings which are non-economic may be undertaken to achieve District objectives 
relating to changes in covenants, call provisions, operational flexibility, tax status of the 
issuer, or the debt service profile. 

 
In general, refundings which produce a net present value savings of at least 4% of 

the principal amount of refunded debt will be considered economically viable. 
Refundings which produce a net present value savings of less than 4% or negative 
savings will be considered on a case-by-case basis.  
 

(ii) Short-term debt. Short-term borrowings may be issued to generate funding for 
cash flow needs in the form of Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes (TRAN).  

 
Short-term borrowings, such as commercial paper, and lines of credit, will be 

considered as an interim source of funding in anticipation of long-term borrowing. Short-
term debt may be issued for any purpose for which long-term debt may be issued, including 
capitalized interest and other financing-related costs. Prior to issuance of the short-term 
debt, a reliable revenue source shall be identified to secure repayment of the debt. The final 
maturity of the debt issued to finance the project shall be consistent with the economic or 
useful life of the project and, unless the Board determines that extraordinary circumstances 
exist, must not exceed seven years.  

 
Short-term debt may also be used to finance short-lived capital projects; for example, 

the District may undertake lease-purchase financing for equipment, and such equipment 
leases may be longer than seven years. 

 

Page 67 of 156



 

Exhibit A 
Page 6 

(iii) Financings on Behalf of Other Entities. The District may also find it beneficial to 
issue debt on behalf of other governmental agencies or private third parties in order to 
further the public purposes of the District. In such cases, the District shall take reasonable 
steps to confirm the financial feasibility of the project to be financed and the financial 
solvency of any borrower and that the issuance of such debt is consistent with the policies 
set forth herein. In no event will the District incur any liability or assume responsibility for 
payment of debt service on such debt. 

 
B. Types of Debt 
 

In order to maximize the financial options available to benefit the public, it is the 
policy of the District to allow for the consideration of issuing all generally accepted types of 
debt, including, but not exclusive to the following: 

 

 General Obligation (GO) Bonds: General Obligation Bonds are suitable for use in 
the construction or acquisition of improvements to real property that benefit the 
public at large. Examples of projects include hospitals, and public safety 
facilities. All GO bonds shall be authorized by the requisite number of voters in 
order to pass. 

 Revenue Bonds: Revenue Bonds are limited-liability obligations tied to a specific 
enterprise or special fund revenue stream where the projects financed clearly 
benefit or relate to the enterprise or are otherwise permissible uses of the special 
revenue. An example of projects that would be financed by a Revenue Bond 
would be improvements to a health facility, which would be paid back with 
money raised from the rates and charges to health facility users. Generally, no 
voter approval is required to issue this type of obligation. 

 Lease-Backed Debt/Certificates of Participation (COP/Lease Revenue Bonds): 
Issuance of Lease-backed debt is a commonly used form of debt that allows a 
public entity to finance projects where the debt service is secured via a lease 
agreement or installment sale agreement and where the payments are budgeted 
in the annual operating budget of the District. Lease-Backed debt does not 
constitute indebtedness under the state or the District’s constitutional debt limit 
and does not require voter approval. 

The District may from time to time find that other forms of debt would be 
beneficial to further its public purposes and may approve such debt without an 
amendment of this Debt Policy. 

 
To maintain a predictable debt service burden, the District will give preference to 

debt that carries a fixed interest rate. An alternative to the use of fixed rate debt is 
variable rate debt. The District may choose to issue securities that pay a rate of interest 
that varies according to a pre-determined formula or results from a periodic remarketing 
of securities. When making the determination to issue bonds in a variable rate mode, 
consideration will be given in regards to the useful life of the project or facility being 
financed or the term of the project requiring the funding, market conditions, credit risk 

Page 68 of 156



 

Exhibit A 
Page 7 

and third party risk analysis, and the overall debt portfolio structure when issuing 
variable rate debt for any purpose. The maximum amount of variable-rate debt should 
be limited to no more than 20 percent of the total debt portfolio. 

The District will limit the use of derivatives, such as interest rate swaps, in its 
debt program. A derivative product is a financial instrument which derives its own 
value from the value of another instrument, usually an underlying asset such as a stock, 
bond, or an underlying reference such as an interest rate. Derivatives are commonly 
used as hedging devices in managing interest rate risk and thereby reducing borrowing 
costs. However, these products bear certain risks not associated with standard debt 
instruments. 

 
C. Relationship of Debt to Capital Improvement Program and Budget 
 
The District intends to issue debt for the purposes stated in this Debt Policy and 

to implement policy decisions incorporated in the District’s capital budget and its capital 
improvement plan.  

 
The District shall strive to fund the upkeep and maintenance of its infrastructure 

and facilities due to normal wear and tear through the expenditure of available 
operating revenues. The District shall seek to avoid the use of debt to fund infrastructure 
and facilities improvements that are the result of normal wear and tear, unless a specific 
revenue source has been identified for this purpose.  

 
The District shall integrate its debt issuances with the goals of its capital 

improvement program by timing the issuance of debt to ensure that projects are 
available when needed in furtherance of the District’s public purposes. 

 
The District shall seek to issue debt in a timely manner to avoid having to make 

unplanned expenditures for capital improvements or equipment from its operating 
funds. 

 
D. Policy Goals Related to Planning Goals and Objectives 
 
The District is committed to financial planning, maintaining appropriate reserve 

levels and employing prudent practices in governance, management and budget 
administration. The District intends to issue debt for the purposes stated in this Debt 
Policy and to implement policy decisions incorporated in the District’s annual 
operating budget.  

 
It is a policy goal of the District to protect taxpayers, ratepayers and constituents 

by utilizing conservative financing methods and techniques so as to obtain the highest 
practical credit ratings (if applicable) and the lowest practical borrowing costs. 

 
The District will comply with applicable state and federal law as it pertains to the 

maximum term of debt and the procedures for levying and imposing any related taxes, 
assessments, rates and charges.  

Page 69 of 156



 

Exhibit A 
Page 8 

 
Except as described in Section 2.A., when refinancing debt, it shall be the policy 

goal of the District to realize, whenever possible, and subject to any overriding non-
financial policy considerations minimum net present value debt service savings equal 
to or greater than 4% of the principal amount of refunded debt. 

 
E. Internal Control Procedures 
 
When issuing debt, in addition to complying with the terms of this Debt Policy, 

the District shall comply with any other applicable policies regarding initial bond 
disclosure, continuing disclosure, post-issuance compliance, and investment of bond 
proceeds.  

 
The District will periodically review the requirements of and will remain in 

compliance with the following: 
 

• any continuing disclosure undertakings under SEC Rule 15c2-12,  
 
• any federal tax compliance requirements, including without limitation 

arbitrage and rebate compliance, related to any prior bond issues, and  
 
• the District’s investment policies as they relate to the investment of 

bond proceeds.  
 
Whenever reasonably possible, proceeds of debt will be held by a third-party 

trustee and the District will submit written requisitions for such proceeds. The District 
will submit a requisition only after obtaining the signature of the Chief Executive Officer 
or the Chief Financial Officer. 
 

F. Waivers of Debt Policy 
 
There may be circumstances from time to time when strict adherence to a 

provision of this Debt Policy is not possible or in the best interests of the District and the 
failure of a debt financing to comply with one or more provisions of this Debt Policy 
shall in no way affect the validity of any debt issued by the District in accordance with 
applicable laws.  
 

Page 70 of 156



DRAFT

Current Status: Draft PolicyStat ID: 3193898

Origination Date: N/A
Last Approved: N/A
Last Revised: N/A
Next Review: N/A
Department: Board - ABD
Applies To: System

Debt Management Policy, ABD-25

1. Findings
This Debt Policy shall govern all debt undertaken by the District. The District hereby recognizes that a
fiscally prudent debt policy is required in order to:
• Maintain the District's sound financial position.
• Ensure the District has the flexibility to respond to changes in future service priorities, revenue levels,
and operating expenses.
• Protect the District's credit-worthiness.
• Ensure that all debt is structured in order to protect both current and future taxpayers, ratepayers and
constituents of the District.
• Ensure that the District's debt is consistent with the District's planning goals and objectives and capital
improvement program or budget, as applicable.
• Encourage those that benefit from a facility/improvement to pay the cost of that facility/improvement
without the need for the expenditure of limited general fund resources.

2. Policies

This Debt Management Policy (the "Debt Policy") of the TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT (the
"District") was approved by the Board of Directors of the District (the "Board"). The Debt Policy may be
amended by the Board as it deems appropriate from time to time in the prudent management of the debt of the
District.

This Debt Policy will also apply to any debt issued by any other public agency for which the Board of the
District acts as its legislative body.

The Debt Policy has been developed to provide guidance in the issuance and management of debt by the
District or its related entities and is intended to comply with Section 8855(i) of the California Government Code
effective on January 1, 2017. The main objectives are to establish conditions for the use of debt; to ensure that
debt capacity and affordability are adequately considered; to minimize the District's interest and issuance
costs; to maintain the highest possible credit rating; to provide complete financial disclosure and reporting; and
to maintain financial flexibility for the District.

Debt, properly issued and managed, is a critical element in any financial management program. It assists in
the District's effort to allocate limited resources to provide the highest quality of service to the public. The
District understands that poor debt management can have ripple effects that hurt other areas of the District. On
the other hand, a properly managed debt program promotes economic growth and enhances the vitality of the
District for its residents and businesses.

Debt Management Policy, ABD-25. Retrieved 01/20/2017. Official copy at http://tfhd.policystat.com/policy/3193898/. Copyright ©
2017 Tahoe Forest Hospital District

Page 1 of 5

Page 71 of 156

www.princexml.com
Prince - Non-commercial License
This document was created with Prince, a great way of getting web content onto paper.

https://tfhd.policystat.com/policy_search/reference/?search_query=&terms=29046


DRAFT

A. Purposes For Which Debt May Be Issued

i. Long-Term Debt. Long-term debt may be issued to finance or refinance the construction,
acquisition, and rehabilitation of capital improvements and facilities, equipment and land to be
owned and/or operated by the District.

a. Long-term debt financings are appropriate when the following conditions exist:
• When the project to be financed is necessary to provide basic services.
• When the project to be financed will provide benefit to constituents over multiple years.
• When total debt does not constitute an unreasonable burden to the District and its
taxpayers and ratepayers.
• When the debt is used to refinance outstanding debt in order to produce debt service
savings or to realize the benefits of a debt restructuring.

b. Long-term debt financings will not generally be considered appropriate for current
operating expenses and routine maintenance expenses.

c. The District may use long-term debt financings subject to the following conditions:
• The project to be financed has been or will be approved by the Board.
• The weighted average maturity of the debt (or the portion of the debt allocated to the
project) will not exceed the average useful life of the project to be financed by more than
20%, unless specific conditions exist that would mitigate the extension of time to repay the
debt and it would not cause the District to violate any covenants to maintain the tax-exempt
status of such debt, if applicable.
• The District estimates that sufficient income or revenues will be available to service the
debt through its maturity.
• The District determines that the issuance of the debt will comply with the applicable
requirements of state and federal law.
• The District considers the improvement/facility to be of vital, time-sensitive need of the
community and there are no plausible alternative financing sources

d. Periodic reviews of outstanding long-term debt will be undertaken to identify refunding
opportunities. Refundings will be considered (within federal tax law constraints, if
applicable) if and when there is a net economic benefit of the refunding. Refundings which
are non-economic may be undertaken to achieve District objectives relating to changes in

The District will consider the use of debt financing primarily for capital improvement projects (CIP) when
the project's useful life will equal or exceed the term of the financing and when resources are identified
sufficient to fund the debt service requirements. An exception to this CIP driven focus is the issuance of
short-term instruments such as tax and revenue anticipation notes, which are to be used for prudent
cash management purposes and conduit financing, as described below. Bonded debt should not be
issued for projects with minimal public benefit or support, or to finance normal operating expenses.

If a department has any project which is expected to use debt financing, the department director is
responsible for expeditiously providing the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer with
reasonable cost estimates, including specific revenue accounts that will provide payment for the debt
service. This will allow an analysis of the project's potential impact on the District's debt capacity and
limitations. The department director shall also provide an estimate of any incremental operating and/or
additional maintenance costs associated with the project and identify sources of revenue, if any, to pay
for such incremental costs.

Debt Management Policy, ABD-25. Retrieved 01/20/2017. Official copy at http://tfhd.policystat.com/policy/3193898/. Copyright ©
2017 Tahoe Forest Hospital District

Page 2 of 5

Page 72 of 156



DRAFT

covenants, call provisions, operational flexibility, tax status of the issuer, or the debt service
profile.

• General Obligation (GO) Bonds: General Obligation Bonds are suitable for use in the construction or
acquisition of improvements to real property that benefit the public at large. Examples of projects include
hospitals, and public safety facilities. All GO bonds shall be authorized by the requisite number of voters
in order to pass.

• Revenue Bonds: Revenue Bonds are limited-liability obligations tied to a specific enterprise or special
fund revenue stream where the projects financed clearly benefit or relate to the enterprise or are
otherwise permissible uses of the special revenue. An example of projects that would be financed by a
Revenue Bond would be improvements to a health facility, which would be paid back with money raised
from the rates and charges to health facility users. Generally, no voter approval is required to issue this
type of obligation.

• Lease-Backed Debt/Certificates of Participation (COP/Lease Revenue Bonds): Issuance of Lease-
backed debt is a commonly used form of debt that allows a public entity to finance projects where the
debt service is secured via a lease agreement or installment sale agreement and where the payments
are budgeted in the annual operating budget of the District. Lease-Backed debt does not constitute

In general, refundings which produce a net present value savings of at least 4% of the principal
amount of refunded debt will be considered economically viable. Refundings which produce a net
present value savings of less than 4% or negative savings will be considered on a case-by-case
basis.

(ii) Short-term debt. Short-term borrowings may be issued to generate funding for cash flow
needs in the form of Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes (TRAN).

Short-term borrowings, such as commercial paper, and lines of credit, will be considered as an
interim source of funding in anticipation of long-term borrowing. Short-term debt may be issued
for any purpose for which long-term debt may be issued, including capitalized interest and other
financing-related costs. Prior to issuance of the short-term debt, a reliable revenue source shall
be identified to secure repayment of the debt. The final maturity of the debt issued to finance the
project shall be consistent with the economic or useful life of the project and, unless the Board
determines that extraordinary circumstances exist, must not exceed seven years.

Short-term debt may also be used to finance short-lived capital projects; for example, the District
may undertake lease-purchase financing for equipment, and such equipment leases may be
longer than seven years.

(iii) Financings on Behalf of Other Entities. The District may also find it beneficial to issue debt
on behalf of other governmental agencies or private third parties in order to further the public
purposes of the District. In such cases, the District shall take reasonable steps to confirm the
financial feasibility of the project to be financed and the financial solvency of any borrower and
that the issuance of such debt is consistent with the policies set forth herein. In no event will the
District incur any liability or assume responsibility for payment of debt service on such debt.

B. Types of Debt

In order to maximize the financial options available to benefit the public, it is the policy of the District to
allow for the consideration of issuing all generally accepted types of debt, including, but not exclusive to
the following:

Debt Management Policy, ABD-25. Retrieved 01/20/2017. Official copy at http://tfhd.policystat.com/policy/3193898/. Copyright ©
2017 Tahoe Forest Hospital District

Page 3 of 5

Page 73 of 156



DRAFT

indebtedness under the state or the District's constitutional debt limit and does not require voter
approval.

The District may from time to time find that other forms of debt would be beneficial to further its public
purposes and may approve such debt without an amendment of this Debt Policy.

To maintain a predictable debt service burden, the District will give preference to debt that carries a
fixed interest rate. An alternative to the use of fixed rate debt is variable rate debt. The District may
choose to issue securities that pay a rate of interest that varies according to a pre-determined formula or
results from a periodic remarketing of securities. When making the determination to issue bonds in a
variable rate mode, consideration will be given in regards to the useful life of the project or facility being
financed or the term of the project requiring the funding, market conditions, credit risk and third party risk
analysis, and the overall debt portfolio structure when issuing variable rate debt for any purpose. The
maximum amount of variable-rate debt should be limited to no more than 20 percent of the total debt
portfolio.

The District will limit the use of derivatives, such as interest rate swaps, in its debt program. A derivative
product is a financial instrument which derives its own value from the value of another instrument,
usually an underlying asset such as a stock, bond, or an underlying reference such as an interest rate.
Derivatives are commonly used as hedging devices in managing interest rate risk and thereby reducing
borrowing costs. However, these products bear certain risks not associated with standard debt
instruments.

C. Relationship of Debt to Capital Improvement Program and Budget

The District intends to issue debt for the purposes stated in this Debt Policy and to implement policy
decisions incorporated in the District's capital budget and its capital improvement plan.

The District shall strive to fund the upkeep and maintenance of its infrastructure and facilities due to
normal wear and tear through the expenditure of available operating revenues. The District shall seek to
avoid the use of debt to fund infrastructure and facilities improvements that are the result of normal wear
and tear, unless a specific revenue source has been identified for this purpose.

The District shall integrate its debt issuances with the goals of its capital improvement program by timing
the issuance of debt to ensure that projects are available when needed in furtherance of the District's
public purposes.

The District shall seek to issue debt in a timely manner to avoid having to make unplanned expenditures
for capital improvements or equipment from its operating funds.

D. Policy Goals Related to Planning Goals and Objectives

The District is committed to financial planning, maintaining appropriate reserve levels and employing
prudent practices in governance, management and budget administration. The District intends to issue
debt for the purposes stated in this Debt Policy and to implement policy decisions incorporated in the
District's annual operating budget.

It is a policy goal of the District to protect taxpayers, ratepayers and constituents by utilizing
conservative financing methods and techniques so as to obtain the highest practical credit ratings (if
applicable) and the lowest practical borrowing costs.

The District will comply with applicable state and federal law as it pertains to the maximum term of debt
and the procedures for levying and imposing any related taxes, assessments, rates and charges.

Debt Management Policy, ABD-25. Retrieved 01/20/2017. Official copy at http://tfhd.policystat.com/policy/3193898/. Copyright ©
2017 Tahoe Forest Hospital District

Page 4 of 5

Page 74 of 156



DRAFTAll revision dates:

Attachments: No Attachments

Except as described in Section 2.A., when refinancing debt, it shall be the policy goal of the District to
realize, whenever possible, and subject to any overriding non-financial policy considerations minimum
net present value debt service savings equal to or greater than 4% of the principal amount of refunded
debt.

E. Internal Control Procedures

When issuing debt, in addition to complying with the terms of this Debt Policy, the District shall comply
with any other applicable policies regarding initial bond disclosure, continuing disclosure, post-issuance
compliance, and investment of bond proceeds.

The District will periodically review the requirements of and will remain in compliance with the following:

• any continuing disclosure undertakings under SEC Rule 15c2-12,

• any federal tax compliance requirements, including without limitation arbitrage and rebate compliance,
related to any prior bond issues, and

• the District's investment policies as they relate to the investment of bond proceeds.

Whenever reasonably possible, proceeds of debt will be held by a third-party trustee and the District will
submit written requisitions for such proceeds. The District will submit a requisition only after obtaining
the signature of the Chief Executive Officer or the Chief Financial Officer.

F. Waivers of Debt Policy

There may be circumstances from time to time when strict adherence to a provision of this Debt Policy
is not possible or in the best interests of the District and the failure of a debt financing to comply with
one or more provisions of this Debt Policy shall in no way affect the validity of any debt issued by the
District in accordance with applicable laws.

Debt Management Policy, ABD-25. Retrieved 01/20/2017. Official copy at http://tfhd.policystat.com/policy/3193898/. Copyright ©
2017 Tahoe Forest Hospital District

Page 5 of 5

Page 75 of 156



Page 76 of 156



Page 77 of 156



Page 78 of 156



Page 79 of 156



Page 80 of 156



MEMBER FDIC   EQUAL HOUSING LENDER    SBA PREFERRED LENDER   
www.umpquabank.com   1-866-4UMPQUA  (1-866-486-7782) 

 

 

January 18, 2017 

 
Gary Hicks 
President 
GL Hicks Financial, LLC 
5033 Riverpark Way 
Provo, UT 84604 
 
 
 
 
Hello from Umpqua: 
 
Please accept this letter as acknowledgement that Umpqua Bank has provided credit approval 
for the refunding of the Tahoe Forest Hospital District’s 2002 Variable Rate Demand Revenue 
Bonds, as detailed in the term sheet dated December 15, 2016. 
 
I appreciate this opportunity to welcome the District into the Umpqua Family, and look forward 
continuing our work together. 
 
Please feel free to reach out to me directly with any questions. 
 
 

 
 
 
Trevor Mael 
Vice President 
trevormael@umpquabank.com 
916.774.3921 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 81 of 156

mailto:trevormael@umpquabank.com


Quint & Thimmig LLP  12/24/16 
  01/10/17 
 
 

20017.09 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

FIFTH SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE OF TRUST 
 
 
 
 

by and between the 
 
 
 

TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
 
 

and 
 
 

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as Trustee 
 
 
 

Dated as of March 1, 2017 
 
 

 
 
 

Relating to 
$____________ 

Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
(Placer and Nevada Counties, California) 

Variable Rate Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2017 
 

Page 82 of 156



- i - 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
 Page 
 

ARTICLE I	
DEFINITIONS; AUTHORIZATION AND PURPOSE OF BONDS; EQUAL SECURITY	

Section 1.01. Definitions. ............................................................................................................................................. 3	
Section 1.02. Rules of Construction. .......................................................................................................................... 5	
Section 1.03. Authorization and Purpose of the 2017 Bonds. ................................................................................ 5 

 
ARTICLE II	

ISSUANCE OF 2017 BONDS	
Section 2.01. Issuance of the 2017 Bonds; Terms of the Bonds. ............................................................................. 6	
Section 2.02. Redemption of the 2017 Bonds ............................................................................................................ 7	
Section 2.03. Transfers of the 2017 Bonds ................................................................................................................. 9 

 
ARTICLE III	

APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS	
Section 3.01. Application of Proceeds of Sale of the 2017 Bonds. ....................................................................... 10	
Section 3.02. 2017 Costs of Issuance Account. ....................................................................................................... 10	
Section 3.03. Satisfaction of Requirements of Additional Bonds. ....................................................................... 10	
Section 3.04. Validity of Bonds ................................................................................................................................. 10 

 
ARTICLE IV	

REVENUES; FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS	
Section 4.01. Pledge of Revenues, Revenue Fund. ................................................................................................ 11	
Section 4.02. Administration of Funds and Accounts. ......................................................................................... 11	
Section 4.03. Application of Sinking Fund Account. ............................................................................................ 11	
Section 4.04. Fees, Charges and Expenses of Trustee ........................................................................................... 11	
Section 4.05. Investments .......................................................................................................................................... 11	
Section 4.06. Acquisition; Valuation and Disposition of Investments ............................................................... 12 

 
ARTICLE V	

COVENANTS	
Section 5.01. Tax Covenants ..................................................................................................................................... 13	
Section 5.02. Reporting Requirements. ................................................................................................................... 14	
Section 5.03. Other Information. .............................................................................................................................. 14	
Section 5.04. Notice of Material Litigation or Governmental Proceeding that May Have a Material 

Adverse Effect. ............................................................................................................................... 14	
Section 5.05. Material Nonpublic Information. ...................................................................................................... 15	
Section 5.06. Confirmation of Indenture. ................................................................................................................ 15	
Section 5.07. Deposit Relationship. .......................................................................................................................... 15 

 
ARTICLE VI	

MISCELLANEOUS	
Section 6.01. Notices .................................................................................................................................................. 16	
Section 6.02. Execution in Several Counterparts ................................................................................................... 16	
Section 6.03. Force Majeure ....................................................................................................................................... 16	
Section 6.04. Electronic Communications ............................................................................................................... 16	

 
EXHIBIT A - FORM OF 2017 BOND 
EXHIBIT B – FORM OF INVESTOR’S LETTER 

Page 83 of 156



 

 

FIFTH SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE OF TRUST 
 
 
THIS FIFTH SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE OF TRUST, is dated as of March 1, 2017 

(the “Fifth Supplemental Indenture”), by and between the TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL 
DISTRICT, a local health care district organized and existing under the constitution and laws of 
the State of California (the “District”), and U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, a national 
banking association organized and existing under the laws of the United States of America, 
with a corporate trust office in San Francisco, California, and being qualified to accept and 
administer the trusts hereby created, as trustee (the “Trustee”), amending and supplementing 
that certain Indenture of Trust, dated as of July 1, 1999, by and between the District and BNY 
Western Trust Company (the “Original Indenture”), as amended and supplemented by that 
certain First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 1, 2002, by and between the District 
and BNY Western Trust Company (the “First Supplemental Indenture”), as amended and 
supplemented by that certain Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of February 1, 2006, by 
and between the District and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A. (the “Second 
Supplemental Indenture”), as amended and supplemented by that certain Third Supplemental 
Indenture, dated as of May 1, 2006, by and between the District and The Bank of New York 
Trust Company, N.A. (the “Third Supplemental Indenture”), and as amended and 
supplemented by that certain Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 1, 2015, by and 
between the District and the Trustee (the “Fourth Supplemental Indenture” and, with the First 
Supplemental Indenture, the Second Supplemental Indenture, the Third Supplemental 
Indenture and the Fifth Supplemental Indenture, the “Indenture”); 

 
 

W I T N E S S E T H : 
 
 
WHEREAS, the District has heretofore issued its $14,830,000 Tahoe Forest Hospital 

District Revenue Bonds, Series 1999A (the “1999A Bonds”), and its $5,125,000 Tahoe Forest 
Hospital District Revenue Bonds, Series 1999B (the “1999B Bonds, and, with the 1999A Bonds, 
the “1999 Bonds”), for the purpose of financing and refinancing the remodeling, expansion, 
improvement and equipping of the health facilities owned and operated by the District; 

 
WHEREAS, the 1999 Bonds were issued pursuant to the Original Indenture; 
 
WHEREAS, the District has also heretofore issued its $12,000,000 Tahoe Forest Hospital 

District (Placer and Nevada Counties, California) Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 
2002, currently outstanding in the principal amount of $8,890,000 (the “2002 Bonds”), for the 
purpose of financing the remodeling, expansion, improvement and equipping of the health 
facilities owned and operated by the District; 

 
WHEREAS, the 2002 Bonds were issued pursuant to the Original Indenture, as amended 

and supplemented by the First Supplemental Indenture; 
 
WHEREAS, the District has also heretofore issued its $27,385,000 Tahoe Forest Hospital 

District (Placer and Nevada Counties, California) Hospital Revenue Bonds, Series 2006 (the 
“2006 Bonds”), for the purpose of (a) refunding a portion of the 1999A Bonds and (b) financing 
the remodeling, expansion, improvement and equipping of the health facilities owned and 
operated by the District; 

 
WHEREAS, the 2006 Bonds were issued pursuant to the Original Indenture, as amended 

and supplemented and as further amended and supplemented by the Second Supplemental 
Indenture and the Third Supplemental Indenture; 

Page 84 of 156



- 2 - 

 
WHEREAS, the District has also heretofore issued its $20,979,000 Tahoe Forest Hospital 

District (Placer and Nevada Counties, California) Hospital Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 
2015, currently outstanding in the principal amount of $20,217,886 (the “2015 Bonds”), for the 
purpose of refunding the 2006 Bonds; 

 
WHEREAS, the 2015 Bonds were issued pursuant to the Original Indenture, as amended 

and supplemented and as further amended and supplemented by the Fourth Supplemental 
Indenture; 

 
WHEREAS, none of the 1999 Bonds or the 2006 Bonds are currently outstanding; 
 
WHEREAS, the District desires to refund all outstanding 2002 Bonds; 
 
WHEREAS, to refund the 2002 Bonds, the District has determined to issue its Tahoe 

Forest Hospital District (Placer and Nevada Counties, California) Variable Rate Refunding 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2017 (the “2017 Bonds”), on a parity as to payment and security with the 
2015 Bonds; 

 
WHEREAS, in order to provide for the authentication and delivery of the 2017 Bonds, to 

establish and declare the terms and conditions upon which the 2017 Bonds are to be issued and 
secured and to secure the payment of the principal thereof and of the interest and premium, if 
any, thereon, the Board of Directors of the District has authorized the execution and delivery of 
this Fifth Supplemental Indenture; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District has determined that all acts and proceedings required by law 

necessary to make the 2017 Bonds, when executed by the District, authenticated and delivered 
by the Trustee and duly issued, the valid, binding and legal special obligations of the District, 
and to constitute the Fifth Supplemental Indenture a valid and binding agreement for the uses 
and purposes herein set forth, in accordance with its terms, have been done and taken; and the 
execution and delivery of the Fifth Supplemental Indenture have been in all respects duly 
authorized; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE FIFTH SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE WITNESSETH, that 

in order to secure the payment of the principal of and the interest and premium (if any) on all 
2017 Bonds at any time issued and Outstanding under the Indenture, according to their tenor, 
and to secure the performance and observance of all the covenants and conditions therein and 
herein set forth, and to declare the terms and conditions upon and subject to which the 2017 
Bonds are to be issued and received, and in consideration of the premises and of the mutual 
covenants herein contained and of the purchase and acceptance of the 2017 Bonds by the 
Owners thereof, and for other valuable consideration, the receipt whereof is hereby 
acknowledged, the District does hereby covenant and agree with the Trustee, for the benefit of 
the respective Owners from time to time of the 2017 Bonds, as follows: 

Page 85 of 156



- 3 - 

ARTICLE I 
 

DEFINITIONS; AUTHORIZATION AND PURPOSE OF BONDS; 
EQUAL SECURITY 

 
 
Section 1.01. Definitions. All terms which are defined in Section 1.01 of the Indenture 

shall have the same meanings in this Fifth Supplemental Indenture as such terms are given in 
said Section 1.01. Unless the context otherwise requires, the additional terms defined in this 
Section 1.01 or in the preambles hereof shall for all purposes of this Fifth Supplemental 
Indenture and of the 2017 Bonds and of any certificate, opinion, request or other documents 
herein mentioned have the meanings specified in the recitals and in this Section 1.01. 

 
“Authorized Denomination” means $1 or any integral multiple thereof. 
 
“Business Day” means (a) any day that is not a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday on 

which banking institutions in the State or in any state in which the city in which the principal 
corporate trust office of the Trustee is located, or (b) a day on which the New York Stock 
Exchange is closed. 

 
“Closing Date” means the date upon which there is a physical delivery of the 2017 Bonds 

in exchange for the amount representing the purchase price of the 2017 Bonds by the Initial 
Owner. 

 
“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as in effect on the Closing Date or 

(except as otherwise referenced in the Indenture or this Fifth Supplemental Indenture) as it may 
be amended to apply to obligations issued on the Closing Date, together with applicable 
temporary and final regulations promulgated under the Code. 

 
“Default Rate” means the current rate of interest with respect to the 2017 Bonds plus 3%. 
 
“Determination of Taxability” means, and shall be deemed to have occurred on the first to 

occur of, the following: 
 
(i) on the date when the District files any statement, supplemental statement 

or other tax schedule, return or document which discloses that an Event of Taxability 
shall have in fact occurred; 

 
(ii) on the date when the Owner or any former Owner notifies the District 

that it has received a written opinion by a nationally recognized attorney or firm of 
attorneys of substantial expertise on the subject of tax-exempt municipal finance to the 
effect that an Event of Taxability shall have occurred unless, within one hundred eighty 
(180) days after receipt by the District of such notification from the Owner or any former 
Owner, the District shall deliver to the Owner and any former Owner (a) absent any 
occurrence described in clauses (i), (iii) or (iv) of this definition of “Determination of 
Taxability, an opinion of a nationally recognized attorney or firm of attorneys of 
substantial experience on the subject of Tax-Exempt municipal finance reasonably 
acceptable to the Owner stating that an Event of Taxability has occurred or (b) a ruling 
or determination letter issued to or on behalf of the District by the Commissioner or any 
District Director of the Internal Revenue Service (or any other governmental official 
exercising the same or a substantially similar function from time to time) to the effect 
that, after taking into consideration such facts as form the basis for the opinion that an 
Event of Taxability has occurred, an Event of Taxability shall not have occurred; 

 

Page 86 of 156



- 4 - 

(iii) on the date when the District shall be advised in writing by the 
Commissioner or any District Director of the Internal Revenue Service (or any other 
government official or agent exercising the same or a substantially similar function from 
time to time) that, based upon filings of the District, or upon any review or audit of the 
District or upon any other ground whatsoever, an Event of Taxability shall have 
occurred; or 

 
(iv) on the date when the District shall receive notice from the Owner or any 

former Owner that the Internal Revenue Service (or any other government official or 
agency exercising the same or a substantially similar function from time to time) has 
assessed as includable in the gross income of such Owner or such former Owner the 
interest with respect to the 2017 Bonds due to the occurrence of an Event of Taxability; 
 

provided, however, no Determination of Taxability shall occur under subparagraph (iii) or (iv) 
hereunder unless the District has been afforded the opportunity, at its expense, to contest any 
such assessment, and, further, no Determination of Taxability shall occur until such contest, if 
made, has been finally determined; provided further, however, that upon demand from the 
Owner or former Owner, the District shall promptly reimburse such Owner or former Owner 
for any payments, including any taxes, interest, penalties or other charges, such Owner (or 
former Owner) shall be obligated to make as a result of the Determination of Taxability. 

 
“Event of Taxability” means (i) the taking of any action by the District, or the failure to 

take any action by the District, or the making by the District of any misrepresentation herein or 
in any certificate required to be given in connection with the issuance, sale or delivery of the 
2017 Bonds, which has the effect of causing interest paid or payable with respect to the 2017 
Bonds to become includable, in whole or in part, in the gross income of the Owner or any 
former Owner for federal income tax purposes or (ii) the entry of any decree or judgment by a 
court of competent jurisdiction, or the taking of any official action by the Internal Revenue 
Service or the Department of the Treasury, which decree, judgment or action shall be final 
under applicable procedural law, in either case, which has the effect of causing interest paid or 
payable with respect to the 2017 Bonds to become includable, in whole or in part, in the gross 
income of the Owner or any former Owner for federal income tax purposes with respect to the 
2017 Bonds. Actions outside the control of the District, including legislation that eliminates the 
tax exemption of municipal bonds, shall not constitute an Event of Taxability. 

 
 “Fair Market Value” means the price at which a willing buyer would purchase the 

investment from a willing seller in a bona fide, arm’s length transaction (determined as of the 
date the contract to purchase or sell the investment becomes binding) if the investment is traded 
on an established securities market (within the meaning of section 1273 of the Code) and, 
otherwise, the term “Fair Market Value” means the acquisition price in a bona fide arm’s length 
transaction (as referenced above) if (i) the investment is a certificate of deposit that is acquired 
in accordance with applicable regulations under the Code, (ii) the investment is an agreement 
with specifically negotiated withdrawal or reinvestment provisions and a specifically 
negotiated interest rate (for example, a guaranteed investment contract, a forward supply 
contract or other investment agreement) that is acquired in accordance with applicable 
regulations under the Code, (iii) the investment is a United States Treasury Security--State and 
Local Government Series that is acquired in accordance with applicable regulations of the 
United States Bureau of Public Debt, or (iv) the investment is the Local Agency Investment 
Fund of the State. 

 
“Interest Payment Date” means, with respect to the 2017 Bonds, January 1 and July 1 in 

each year, beginning July 1, 2017, and continuing so long as any 2017 Bonds remain 
Outstanding. 

 

Page 87 of 156



- 5 - 

“Initial Owner” means Umpqua Bank or an affiliated entity, and its successors and 
assigns. 

 
 “Owner” means the registered owner of the 2017 Bonds. 
 
“Refunding Bond Law” means the provisions of section 53570 et seq. of the California 

Government Code. 
 
“Taxable Period” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.02(b) hereof. 
 
“Taxable Rate” means, with respect to a Taxable Period, the current interest rate with 

respect to the 2017 Bonds plus ___% during such period. 
 
“Trustee” means U.S. Bank National Association or another trustee, which must be a 

banking association, banking corporation or trust company acting in the capacity of successor 
trustee. 

 
“2002 Bonds” means the District’s $12,000,000 Tahoe Forest Hospital District (Placer and 

Nevada Counties, California) Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 2002, currently 
outstanding in the principal amount of $8,890,000. 

 
“2015 Bonds” means the District’s $20,979,000 Tahoe Forest Hospital District (Placer and 

Nevada Counties, California) Hospital Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2015, currently 
outstanding in the principal amount of $20,217,886. 

 
“2017 Bonds” means the Bonds authorized by Article II hereof. 
 
“2017 Costs of Issuance Account” means the account by that name established and held by 

the Trustee pursuant to Section 3.02. 
 
Section 1.02. Rules of Construction. All references in this Fifth Supplemental Indenture 

to “Articles,” “Sections,” and other subdivisions are to the corresponding Articles, Sections or 
subdivisions of this Fifth Supplemental Indenture; and the words “herein,” “hereof,” 
“hereunder,” and other words of similar import refer to this Fifth Supplemental Indenture as a 
whole and not to any particular Article, Section or subdivision hereof. 

 
Words of the masculine gender shall be deemed and construed to include correlative 

words of the feminine and neuter genders. Unless the context shall otherwise indicate, words 
importing the singular number shall include the plural number and vice versa, and words 
importing persons shall include corporations and associations, including public bodies, as well 
as natural persons. 

 
Section 1.03. Authorization and Purpose of the 2017 Bonds. The District has reviewed all 

proceedings heretofore taken relative to the authorization of the 2017 Bonds and has found, as a 
result of such review, and hereby finds and determines that all things, conditions, and acts 
required by law to exist, happen and/or be performed precedent to and in the issuance of the 
2017 Bonds do exist, have happened and have been performed in due time, form and manner as 
required by law, and the District is now authorized, as an exercise of the municipal affairs 
power of the District under the constitution and laws of the State and pursuant to the Local 
Health Care District Law and each and every requirement of law, to issue the 2017 Bonds in the 
manner and form provided in this Fifth Supplemental Indenture. Accordingly, the District 
hereby authorizes the issuance of the 2017 Bonds pursuant to the Refunding Bond Law and the 
Indenture. 

Page 88 of 156



- 6 - 

ARTICLE II 
 

ISSUANCE OF 2017 BONDS 
 
 
Section 2.01. Issuance of the Bonds; Terms of the 2017 Bonds. 
 
(a) Issuance of the 2017 Bonds. The 2017 Bonds authorized to be issued by the District 

under and subject to the Refunding Bond Law and the Indenture shall be designated the “Tahoe 
Forest Hospital District (Placer and Nevada Counties, California) Variable Rate Refunding 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2017” and shall be issued in the original aggregate principal amount of 
______________ dollars ($_____). 

 
(b) Terms of the Bonds. 
 

(i) Registration. The 2017 Bonds shall be registered in the name of the Owner 
and shall be evidenced by one fully registered 2017 Bond in the total principal amount 
thereof. Registered ownership of the 2017 Bonds may not thereafter be transferred 
except as set forth herein.  

 
(ii) Dated Date and Interest Payment Dates. The 2017 Bonds shall be dated as of 

the Closing Date and interest thereon shall be payable semiannually on each Interest 
Payment Date.  

 
(iii) Variable Rate. The 2017 Bonds shall mature on July 1, 2032, and shall bear 

interest at a variable rate equal to 65% of the aggregate of the 30-day LIBOR plus 1.70%. 
Interest on the 2017 Bonds shall be calculated on the basis of a three hundred sixty (360) 
day year of twelve thirty (30) day months. 

 
(iv) Default Rate. Upon the occurrence and continuation of an Event of Default, 

the 2017 Bonds shall bear interest at the Default Rate. 
 
(v) Taxable Rate. 
 

(A) In the event a Determination of Taxability occurs, to the extent not 
payable to each Owner under the terms of this Fifth Supplemental Indenture and 
the 2017 Bonds, the District hereby agrees to pay to each Owner on demand 
therefor (1) an amount equal to the difference between (A) the amount of interest 
that would have been paid to such Owner on the 2017 Bonds during the period 
for which interest on the 2017 Bonds is included in the gross income of such 
Owner if the 2017 Bonds had borne interest at the Taxable Rate, beginning on the 
Taxable Date (the “Taxable Period”), and (B) the amount of interest actually paid 
to the Owner during the Taxable Period, and (2) an amount equal to any interest, 
penalties or charges owed by such Owner as a result of interest on the 2017 
Bonds becoming included in the gross income of such Owner, together with any 
and all external attorneys’ fees, court costs, or other reasonable out-of-pocket 
costs incurred by such Owner in connection therewith. 

 
(B) Subject to the provisions of clauses (C) and (D) below, such Owner 

shall afford the District the opportunity, at the District’s sole cost and expense, to 
contest (1) the validity of any amendment to the Code which causes the interest 
on the 2017 Bonds to be included in the gross income of such Owner or (2) any 
challenge to the validity of the tax exemption with respect to the interest on the 

Page 89 of 156



- 7 - 

2017 Bonds, including the right to direct the necessary litigation contesting such 
challenge (including administrative audit appeals). 

 
(C) As a condition precedent to the exercise by the District of its right to 

contest set forth in clause (B) above, the District shall, within thirty (30) days of 
the written demand therefor, reimburse such Owner for any and all expenses 
(including attorneys’ fees for services that may be required or desirable, as 
determined by such Owner in its sole discretion) that may be incurred by the 
Owner in connection with any such contest, and shall, on demand, immediately 
reimburse the Owner for any and all penalties or other charges payable by such 
Owner for failure to include such interest in its gross income; and 

 
(D) The obligations of the District under this Section 2.02(b)(v) shall 

survive the termination of this Fifth Supplemental Indenture, and the 
redemption or other payment in full of the 2017 Bonds. 

 
(vi) Payment. The principal or sinking fund installments of, and redemption 

premium, if any, of the Bonds shall be payable in lawful money of the United States of 
America at the Principal Corporate Trust Office. Payment of the interest on any Bond 
shall be made to the person whose name appears on the bond registration books of the 
Trustee as the Owner thereof as of the Record Date for each Interest Payment Date, such 
interest to be paid by check or draft mailed on each Interest Payment Date to the Owner 
at his or her address as it appears on such registration books; provided that such interest 
shall be paid by wire transfer to any Owner of at least $1,000,000 in aggregate principal 
amount of Bonds if the Owner makes a written request of the Trustee prior to the Record 
Date for an Interest Payment Date specifying the account address in the United States. 

 
Any such interest not so punctually paid or duly provided for shall forthwith 

cease to be payable to the Owners on such Record Date and shall be paid to the person 
in whose name the 2017 Bond is registered at the close of business on a Special Record 
Date for the payment of such defaulted interest to be fixed by the Trustee, notice of 
which shall be given to the Owners by first class mail not less than ten (10) days prior to 
such Special Record Date. 

 
(vii) No Rating, DTC Registration or Offering Document. The 2017 Bonds shall 

not be (i) assigned a rating by any rating agency, (ii) registered with The Depository 
Trust Company or any other securities depository, (iii) issued pursuant to any type of 
offering document or official statement, or (iv) be assigned a CUSIP number by Standard 
& Poor’s CUSIP Service Bureau. 

 
Section 2.02. Redemption of the 2017 Bonds. 
 
(a) Optional Redemption of the 2017 Bonds. The 2017 Bonds are subject to redemption prior 

to their stated maturity, at the option of the District, in whole or in part on any date, in inverse 
order of sinking fund payment dates, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount of 
2017 Bonds called for redemption, together with interest accrued thereon to the date fixed for 
redemption, plus a premium as shown in the following table: 

 
Redemption Period Redemption Premium 

Closing Date through February 28, 2020 3% 
March 1, 2020, through February 28, 2023 2% 
March 1, 2023, through February 28, 2026 1% 
March 1, 2026, and thereafter 0% 

 

Page 90 of 156



- 8 - 

 (b) Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption of the 2017 Bonds. The 2017 Bonds are subject to 
mandatory redemption on July 1 in each year on and after July 1, 2017, to and including July 1, 
2032, from mandatory sinking fund installments to be paid by the District with respect to each 
such redemption date, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof to be 
redeemed, together with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption, without 
premium, as follows: 

 
 Mandatory  Principal  Mandatory  Principal 

Redemption Date  Amount to be Redemption Date  Amount to be 
(July 1) Redeemed (July 1) Redeemed 
2017  2025  
2018  2026  
2019  2027  
2020  2028  
2021  2029  
2022  2030  
2023  2031  
2024  2032†  

   
†Maturity 

 
In the event that the Trustee shall redeem the 2017 Bonds in part but not in whole 

pursuant to subsection (a) of this Section 2.02, the amount of the 2017 Bonds to be redeemed in 
each subsequent year pursuant to this subsection (b) shall be reduced as shall be determined by 
the District and specified in writing to the Trustee. 

 
(c) Notice of Redemption. Notice of any optional (but not mandatory sinking fund) 

redemption shall be given by the Trustee on behalf and at the expense of the District by mailing 
a copy of a redemption notice by first class mail at least thirty (30) days and not more than sixty 
(60) days prior to the date fixed for redemption to each Owner of the 2017 Bond or 2017 Bonds 
to be redeemed at the address shown on the Registration Books; provided, however, that neither 
the failure to receive such notice nor any defect in any notice shall affect the sufficiency of the 
proceedings for the redemption of the 2017 Bonds. 

 
All notices of redemption shall be dated and shall state: (i) the redemption date, (ii) the 

redemption price, (iii) if less than all Outstanding 2017 Bonds are to be redeemed, the 
identification (and, in the case of partial redemption, the respective principal amounts) of the 
2017 Bonds to be redeemed, (iv) that on the redemption date the redemption price will become 
due and payable with respect to each such 2017 Bond or portion thereof called for redemption, 
and that interest with respect thereto shall cease to accrue from and after said date, (v) the place 
where such 2017 Bonds are to be surrendered for payment of the redemption price, and (vi) in 
the case of a redemption pursuant to Section 2.02(a), that such notice of redemption is 
revocable, no later than five days prior to the date set for redemption, notification of such 
revocation to be provided in the same manner as notice of redemption had been provided. 

 
Notice of redemption having been given as aforesaid, the 2017 Bonds or portions of the 

2017 Bonds so to be redeemed shall, on the redemption date, become due and payable at the 
redemption price therein specified, and from and after such date (unless the District shall 
default in the payment of the redemption price) interest with respect to such 2017 Bonds or 
portions of the 2017 Bonds shall cease to accrue and be payable. Upon surrender of such 2017 
Bonds for redemption in accordance with said notice, such 2017 Bonds shall be paid by the 
Trustee at the redemption price. Installments of interest due on or prior to the redemption date 
shall be payable as herein provided for payment of interest. Upon surrender for any partial 
redemption of any 2017 Bond, there shall be prepared for the Owner a new 2017 Bond or 2017 
Bonds of the same maturity in the amount of the unpaid principal. All 2017 Bonds which have 

Page 91 of 156



- 9 - 

been redeemed shall be canceled by the Trustee, shall not be reissued and shall be destroyed 
pursuant to Section 12.04 of the Indenture. 

 
The 2017 Bonds are not required to be surrendered for the payment of mandatory 

sinking fund redemption and payment shall be made by wire transfer to the Owner, so long as 
the 2017 Bonds are held by a single Owner. 

 
Section 2.03. Transfers of the 2017 Bonds.  
 
(a) The 2017 Bonds may, in accordance with their terms, be transferred in whole or in 

part, upon the registration books by the person in whose name it is registered, in person or by 
his attorney duly authorized in writing upon surrender of the 2017 Bonds for cancellation at the 
Principal Corporate Trust Office, accompanied by delivery of a written instrument of transfer in 
a form approved by the Trustee, duly executed. Whenever the 2017 Bonds shall be surrendered 
for registration of transfer, the Trustee shall execute and deliver a 2017 Bond for like aggregate 
principal amount. The District shall pay any costs of the Trustee incurred in connection with 
such transfer except that the Trustee may require the payment by the Owner requesting such 
transfer of any tax or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such 
transfer. The Trustee shall not be required to transfer (i) the 2017 Bonds during the period 
between the date fifteen (15) days prior to the date of selection of 2017 Bonds for redemption 
and such date of selection, or (ii) any 2017 Bonds selected for redemption. 

 
(b) Ownership of the 2017 Bonds may be transferred in whole or in part but only to a 

person that the Owner reasonably believes is: 
 

(i) a qualified institutional buyer within the meaning of Rule 144A promulgated 
under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, 

 
(ii) subject to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, an 

accredited investor as defined in section 501(a)(1), (2), (3) or (7) of Regulation D 
promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or 

 
(iii) a trust, partnership, custodial arrangement or similar entity, interests in 

which are offered and sold in a private placement or limited offering only to qualified 
institutional buyers or, subject to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as 
amended, accredited investors; 

 
in each case that executes and delivers to the Trustee an investor letter in substantially the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit B; provided, however, if transferred in part, such transfer shall not be to 
more than 5 transferees and in amounts not less than $500,000. 

 

Page 92 of 156



- 10 - 

ARTICLE III 
 

APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS 
 
Section 3.01. Application of Proceeds of Sale of the 2017 Bonds. Upon the receipt of 

payment for the 2017 Bonds on the Closing Date, the Trustee shall apply the proceeds of sale 
thereof (being $____________) as follows: 

 
(a) The Trustee shall transfer to the letter of credit bank relating to the 2002 Bonds the 

amount of $________, to be applied to reimburse the draw made on the letter of credit relating 
to the 2002 Bonds to purchase 2002 Bonds tendered and to redeem the 2002 Bonds; and 

 
(b) The Trustee shall deposit in the 2017 Costs of Issuance Account the amount of 

$_______, which represents the amount necessary for the payment of the Costs of Issuance of 
the 2017 Bonds. 

 
The Trustee may, in its discretion, establish a temporary fund or account to facilitate the 

foregoing transfer. 
 
Section 3.02. 2017 Costs of Issuance Account.  There is hereby created a separate account 

within the Costs of Issuance Fund to be known as the “2017 Costs of Issuance Account,” to be 
held in trust by the Trustee. The Trustee shall disburse moneys in the 2017 Costs of Issuance 
Account for the purpose of paying or reimbursing the payment of the Costs of Issuance of the 
2017 Bonds, in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture. The moneys in the 2017 Costs 
of Issuance Account shall be used and withdrawn by the Trustee to pay the Costs of Issuance of 
the 2017 Bonds. 

 
Any amounts remaining in the 2017 Costs of Issuance Account after May 16, 2017, shall 

be applied to the payment of debt service on the 2017 Bonds and the 2017 Costs of Issuance 
Account shall be closed. 

 
Section 3.03. Satisfaction of Requirements of Additional Bonds. The District hereby 

certifies that all provisions of Sections 3.05 and 3.06 of the Indenture relating to the issuance of 
Additional Bonds have been satisfied such that the 2017 Bonds are payable from Revenues and 
secured by the pledge made under the Indenture equally and ratably with the 2002 Bonds and 
such Additional Bonds as the District may hereafter issue. 

 
Section 3.04. Validity of Bonds. The validity of the authorization and issuance of the 2017 

Bonds shall not be affected in any way by any proceedings taken by the District and the recital 
contained in the 2017 Bonds that the same are issued pursuant to the Refunding Bond Law shall 
be conclusive evidence of their validity of their issuance. 

 

Page 93 of 156



- 11 - 

ARTICLE IV 
 

REVENUES; FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS 
 
 
Section 4.01. Pledge of Revenues, Revenue Fund. The District has heretofore transferred, 

placed a charge upon, assigned and set over to the Trustee, for the benefit of the Owners, that 
portion of the Revenues which is necessary to pay the principal or Redemption Price of and 
interest on the Bonds (including the 2017 Bonds) in any year, together with all moneys on 
deposit in the Revenue Fund, to the punctual payment of the principal or Redemption Price of 
and interest on the Bonds (including the 2017 Bonds). 

 
Section 4.02. Administration of Funds and Accounts. All funds and accounts created 

pursuant to the Indenture shall continue to be administered by the Trustee in the manner 
provided by the Indenture and this Fifth Supplemental Indenture as if there were a single issue 
of Bonds concurrently sold and delivered. 

 
Section 4.03. Application of Sinking Fund Account. 
 
(a) The Trustee shall establish and maintain a separate subaccount within the Principal 

Account, such account to be designated “Series 2017 Sinking Fund Account.” 
 
(b) All amounts in the Series 2017 Sinking Fund Account shall be used and withdrawn 

by the Trustee solely to purchase or redeem or pay at maturity the 2017 Bonds as provided 
herein and in the Indenture. 

 
(c) Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the Indenture and in this Section 4.03, 

the 2017 Bonds shall be redeemed (or paid at maturity, as the case may be) by application of 
sinking fund installments in the amounts and upon the dates set forth in Section 2.02(b) hereof. 

 
Section 4.04. Fees, Charges and Expenses of Trustee. Notwithstanding the provisions of 

Sections 8.04 and 9.06 of the Indenture, the Trustee shall be entitled to payment and 
reimbursement for reasonable fees for its services rendered hereunder and all advances, if any, 
including interest on all such advances at its prime rate then in effect, external counsel fees 
(including expenses), the allocated cost of internal legal services (to the extent such services are 
not redundant of services performed by external counsel) and all disbursements of internal 
counsel, and other expenses reasonably and necessarily made or incurred by the Trustee in 
connection with such services and, in the Event of Default, the Trustee shall have a first and 
prior lien on the funds held hereunder to secure the same; provided, however, that in no event 
shall the Trustee have a lien on premiums paid in connection with an optional redemption of 
2017 Bonds or of any moneys held for the benefit of 2017 Owners. The Trustee’s compensation 
shall not be limited by any provision of law in regard to the compensation of a trustee of an 
express trust. The Trustee’s rights hereunder shall survive its resignation or removal and final 
payment of the 2017 Bonds. 

 
Section 4.05. Investments. 
 
(a) All moneys in any of the funds or accounts established with the Trustee pursuant to 

this Fifth Supplemental Indenture shall be invested by the Trustee solely in Permitted 
Investments, as directed pursuant to the Request of the District filed with the Trustee at least 
two (2) Business Days in advance of the making of such investments. In the absence of any such 
directions from the District, the Trustee shall invest any such moneys in Permitted Investments 
described in clause (5) of the definition thereof. Obligations purchased as an investment of 
moneys in any fund shall be deemed to be part of such fund or account. All interest or gain 

Page 94 of 156



- 12 - 

derived from the investment of amounts in any of the funds or accounts established hereunder 
shall be deposited in the fund or account from which such investment was made. The Trustee 
may act as principal or agent in the acquisition of any investment. The Trustee shall incur no 
liability for losses arising from any investments made pursuant to this Section 4.05. The District 
acknowledges that to the extent regulations of the Comptroller of the Currency or other 
applicable regulatory entity grant the District the right to receive brokerage confirmations of 
security transactions as they occur, the District specifically waives receipt of such confirmations 
to the extent permitted by law. The Trustee will furnish the District with monthly account 
statements as provided herein which include detail for all investment transactions made by the 
Trustee hereunder. 

 
(b) For investment purposes, the Trustee may commingle the funds and accounts 

established hereunder, but shall account for each separately. 
 
Section 4.06. Acquisition; Valuation and Disposition of Investments. Except as otherwise 

provided in the next sentence, all investments of amounts deposited in any fund or account 
created by or pursuant to this Indenture, or otherwise containing gross proceeds of the 2017 
Bonds (within the meaning of section 148 of the Code) shall be acquired, disposed of, and 
valued (as of the date that valuation is required by this Indenture of the Code) by the District at 
Fair Market Value. Investments in funds or accounts (or portions thereof) that are subject to a 
yield restriction under applicable provisions of the Code shall be valued at their present value 
(within the meaning of section 148 of the Code). 

 

Page 95 of 156



- 13 - 

ARTICLE V 
 

COVENANTS  
 
 
Section 5.01. Tax Covenants. 
 
(a) Federal Guarantee Prohibition. The District shall not take any action or permit or suffer 

any action to be taken if the result of the same would be to cause any of the 2017 Bonds to be 
“federally guaranteed” within the meaning of section 149(b) of the Code. 

 
(b) Rebate Requirement. The District shall take any and all actions necessary to assure 

compliance with section 148(f) of the Code, relating to the rebate of excess investment earnings, 
if any, to the federal government, to the extent that such section is applicable to the 2017 Bonds. 

 
(c) No Arbitrage. The District shall not take, or permit or suffer to be taken by the Trustee 

or otherwise, any action with respect to the proceeds of the 2017 Bonds which, if such action 
had been reasonably expected to have been taken, or had been deliberately and intentionally 
taken, on the date of issuance of the 2017 Bonds would have caused the 2017 Bonds to be 
“arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of section 148 of the Code. 

 
(d) Prohibited Facilities. No portion of the proceeds of the 2017 Bonds shall be used to 

provide any airplane, skybox or other private luxury box, health club facility, facility primarily 
used for gambling, or store the principal business of which is the sale of alcoholic beverages for 
consumption off premises. No portion of the proceeds of the 2017 Bonds shall be used for an 
office unless the office is located on the premises of the facilities constituting the Project and 
unless not more than a de minimis amount of the functions to be performed at such office is not 
related to the day-to-day operations of the Project. 

 
(e) Use Covenant. The District shall not use or knowingly permit the use of any proceeds 

of the 2017 Bonds or any other funds of the District, directly or indirectly, in any manner, and 
shall not take or permit to be taken any other action or actions, which would result in any of the 
2017 Bonds being treated as an obligation not described in section 145 of the Code by reason of 
such 2017 Bond not meeting the requirements of section 145 of the Code. 

 
(f) Maintenance of Tax-Exemption. The District shall take all actions necessary to assure the 

exclusion of interest on the 2017 Bonds from the gross income of the Owners of the 2017 Bonds 
to the same extent as such interest is permitted to be excluded from gross income under the 
Code as in effect on the date of issuance of the 2017 Bonds. 

 
(g) Rebate of Excess Investment Earnings to United States. The District hereby covenants to 

calculate or cause to be calculated excess investment earnings to the extent required by section 
148(f) of the Code and shall cause payment of an amount equal to excess investment earnings to 
the United States in accordance with the Regulations, in each case at the sole expense of the 
District. 

 
In order to provide for the administration of this Section 5.01(g), the District may 

provide for the employment of independent attorneys (including Bond Counsel), accountants 
and consultants compensated on such reasonable basis as the District or the Trustee may deem 
appropriate, and in addition to and without limitation of the provisions hereof, the Trustee may 
rely conclusively upon and shall be fully protected from all liability in relying upon the 
opinions, calculations, determinations, directions and advice of such attorneys, accountants and 
consultants employed by the District or the Trustee hereunder. The Trustee may rely 
conclusively upon the District’s determinations, calculations and certifications required by this 

Page 96 of 156



- 14 - 

Section 5.01. The Trustee shall have no responsibility to independently make any calculation or 
determination or to review the District’s calculations hereunder. 

 
Section 5.02. Reporting Requirements. The District shall keep proper books of record 

and account in which full, true and correct entries will be made of all dealings or transactions of 
or in relation to its business and affairs on a consolidated or combined basis in accordance with 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. The District shall furnish to the Owner copies of 
each of the following: 

 
(a) Annual Financial Statements. As soon as available, and in any event within 180 days 

after the close of each Fiscal Year of the District, the financial statements of the District which 
shall be audited and reported on without qualification by an accountant and shall be certified to 
the District by such accountant as (i) having been prepared in accordance with Generally 
Accepted Accounting Principles (applied on a basis consistent with that of the preceding Fiscal 
Year) and (ii) fairly presenting the financial condition of the District as of the end of such Fiscal 
Year and reflecting its operations during such Fiscal Year and (iii) showing all material 
liabilities, direct or contingent, and disclosing the existence of any Off-Balance Sheet Liability, 
and shall include, without limitation, balance sheets, profit and loss statements and statements 
of cash flows, together with notes and supporting schedules, all on a consolidated and 
consolidating basis and in reasonable detail and including a copy of any management letter or 
audit report provided to the District by such Accountant. 

 
(b) Quarterly Financial Statements. As soon as available, and in any event within 45 days 

after the end of each fiscal quarterly period of each Fiscal Year of the District, the unaudited 
financial statements of the District, including an income statement, a balance sheet, and changes 
in net assets, which shall be internally prepared by management of the District and presented to 
the Owner, along with a certification by a principal financial officer of the District as to the 
matters set forth under clauses (i), (ii) and (iii) of subsection (a) above. 

 
Section 5.03. Other Information. Such other information respecting the business, 

properties or the condition or operations, financial or otherwise, of the District as the Owner 
may from time to time  reasonably request, including without limitation, reports of any 
governmental audits and inspections and the extent not included in the audited financial 
statements of the District, assessed valuations and secured tax charges and delinquencies for the 
preceding fiscal year within 210 days following the end of each fiscal year of the District, and 
any other information that the Owner may reasonably request from time to time. 

 
Section 5.04. Notice of Material Litigation or Governmental Proceeding that May Have a 

Material Adverse Effect. The District hereby covenants to provide to the Owner notice of any 
material litigation or governmental proceeding initiated against the District or any other action 
or event that is known to the District that may have a material adverse effect. "Material 
litigation or governmental proceeding" means any action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or 
investigation against the District in any court or before any arbitrator of any kind or by or 
before any governmental authority, of which the District has notice or knowledge and which, if 
determined adversely to the District, may have a material adverse effect on the Revenues of the 
District’s facilities, may adversely affect the exclusion of interest with respect to the 2017 Bonds 
from gross income for federal income tax purposes or the exemption of such interest for state 
income tax purposes. "Material adverse effect" means an event or occurrence which adversely 
affects in any manner (a) the authority for or the issuance, validity or enforceability of the 2017 
Bonds, (b) the Revenues in an amount greater than $2,500,000, (c) the exclusion of interest with 
respect to the 2017 Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes, (d) the exemption 
of such interest for state income tax purposes, (e) the existence of the District as a health care 
district under the laws of the State, (f) the overall operation of the District’s facilities as a going 
concern (such as a loss of license or accreditation, casualty losses, change in laws or such other 

Page 97 of 156



- 15 - 

events or occurrence which materially adversely affects the long-term operations of the 
District’s facilities), or (g) the ability of the District to make payments on the 2017 Bonds. 

 
Section 5.05. Material Nonpublic Information.. By its receipt of material non-public 

information hereunder, the Owner acknowledges that information furnished to it pursuant to 
the Indenture may include material non-public information concerning the District or its 
securities and confirms that it will treat such information as confidential information and will 
handle such non-public information in accordance with any applicable law, including federal 
and state securities laws; provided however, nothing in this paragraph shall prohibit the Owner 
from sharing such information with any subsequent transferee or assignee. 

 
Section 5.06. Confirmation of Indenture. Except as otherwise provided herein, all 

covenants made in Article VII of the Indenture are hereby confirmed as applicable to the 2017 
Bonds under this Fifth Supplemental Indenture. 

 
Section 5.07. Deposit Relationship. The District agrees that, within 90 days of the Closing 

Date, it will deposit and maintain deposited with the Original Purchaser a minimum amount of 
$_______, to be invested at the direction of the District in any type of account offered by the 
Original Purchaser in the normal course of business, including but not limited to checking, 
savings, money market accounts and certificates of deposit (excluding CDARS). If the funds are 
deposited into an interest-bearing account, such account shall pay interest at the comparable 
market rate. If, at any time prior to the maturity date of the Bonds, the depository relationship is 
terminated, the current interest rate (which may be the Taxable Rate or the Default Rate) with 
respect to the Bonds will be increased by 0.___%. 

 

Page 98 of 156



- 16 - 

ARTICLE VI 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 
 
Section 6.01. Notices. All written notices to be given under this Fifth Supplemental 

Indenture shall be given by mail or personal delivery to the party entitled thereto at its address 
set forth below, or at such address as the party may provide to the other party in writing from 
time to time. All notices, certificates or other communications hereunder shall be sufficiently 
given and shall be deemed to have been received upon actual receipt. 

 
If to the District: Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
 10121 Pine Avenue 
 Truckee, CA 96160 
 Attention: Chief Financial Officer 
 Phone: (530) 582-6656 
 Fax: (530) 587-2532 
 
If to the Trustee U.S. Bank National Association 
 One California Street, Suite 1000 
 San Francisco, CA 94111 
 Attention: Global Corporate Trust Services 
 Phone: (415) 677-3622 
 Fax: (415) 677-3769 
 
To the Initial Owner: Umpqua Bank 
 2998 Douglas Boulevard, Suite 100 
 Roseville, CA 95661 
 Attention: Ms. Amy Booth 
 Telephone: (916) 774-3931 
 Fax: (916) 783-2448 
 E-mail: amybooth @umpquabank.com 
 
Section 6.02. Execution in Several Counterparts. This Fifth Supplemental Indenture may 

be executed in any number of counterparts and each of such counterparts shall for all purposes 
be deemed to be an original; and all such counterparts, or as many of them as the District and 
the Trustee shall preserve undestroyed, shall together constitute but one and the same 
instrument. 

 
Section 6.03. Force Majeure. From the effective date of this Fifth Supplemental 

Indenture, the Trustee, or any successor in interest, shall not be considered in breach of or in 
default in its obligations with respect to any obligations created hereunder or progress in 
respect thereto, in the event of delay in the performance of such obligations due to 
unforeseeable causes beyond its control and without its fault or negligence, including, but not 
limited to, acts of God, or of the public enemy, acts of a government, acts of the other party, 
fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight embargoes, earthquakes, 
explosion, mob violence, riot, inability to procure or general sabotage or rationing of labor, 
equipment, facilities, sources of energy, material or supplies in the open market, litigation or 
arbitration involving a party or others relating to zoning or other governmental action or 
inaction pertaining to the project, malicious mischief, condemnation, and unusually severe 
weather or delays of suppliers or subcontractors due to such causes or any similar event and/or 
occurrences beyond the control of the Trustee. 
 

Section 6.04. Electronic Communications. The Trustee agrees to accept and act upon 
instructions or directions pursuant to this Fifth Supplemental Indenture sent by unsecured e-
mail, facsimile transmission or other similar unsecured electronic methods; provided, however, 
that, the Trustee shall have received an incumbency certificate listing persons designated to give 

Page 99 of 156



- 17 - 

such instructions or directions and containing specimen signatures of such designated persons, 
which such incumbency certificate shall be amended and replaced whenever a person is to be 
added or deleted from the listing. If the District elects to give the Trustee e-mail or facsimile 
instructions (or instructions by a similar electronic method) and the Trustee acts upon such 
instructions, the Trustee’s understanding of such instructions shall be deemed controlling. The 
Trustee shall not be liable for any losses, costs or expenses arising directly or indirectly from the 
Trustee’s reliance upon and compliance with such instructions notwithstanding such 
instructions conflict or are inconsistent with a subsequent written instruction. The District 
agrees to assume all risks arising out of the use of such electronic methods to submit 
instructions and directions to the Trustee, including without limitation the risk of interception 
and misuse by third parties. 

Page 100 of 156



- 18 - 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT has caused this 
Fifth Supplemental Indenture to be signed in its name by its Chief Financial Officer, and U.S. 
BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as Trustee, in token of its acceptance of the trusts created 
hereunder, has caused this Fifth Supplemental Indenture to be signed in its corporate name by 
its authorized officers, all as of the day and year first above written. 

 
TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
By    

Crystal Betts 
Chief Financial Officer 

 
U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as 
Trustee 
 
 
 
By    
 David Jason 

 Vice President 

Page 101 of 156



Quint & Thimmig LLP 12/24/16 
 01/10/17 
 
 

 Exhibit A 20017.09 
 Page 1 

EXHIBIT A 
 

FORM OF 2017 BOND 
 
 
 

THE HOLDER OF THIS BOND BY ITS ACCEPTANCE HEREOF AGREES THAT NO TRANSFER OF A 
BOND (OR ANY INTEREST THEREIN) SHALL BE MADE EXCEPT TO (A) A QUALIFIED 
INSTITUTIONAL BUYER WITHIN THE MEANING OF RULE 144A PROMULGATED UNDER THE 
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR (B) SUBJECT TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE 
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, AN ACCREDITED INVESTOR AS DEFINED IN SECTION 
501(A)(1), (2), (3) OR (7) OF REGULATION D PROMULGATED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 
1933, AS AMENDED, OR (C) A TRUST, PARTNERSHIP, CUSTODIAL ARRANGEMENT OR SIMILAR 
ENTITY, INTERESTS IN WHICH ARE OFFERED AND SOLD IN A PRIVATE PLACEMENT OR 
LIMITED OFFERING ONLY TO QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYERS OR, SUBJECT TO THE 
REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, ACCREDITED INVESTORS; IN 
EACH CASE THAT EXECUTES AND DELIVERS AN INVESTOR LETTER IN SUBSTANTIALLY THE 
FORM ATTACHED AS EXHIBIT B TO THE INDENTURE (AS HEREINAFTER DEFINED) 
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
PLACER AND NEVADA COUNTIES 

 
TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT 

Variable Rate Refunding Revenue Bond, Series 2017 
 

 
INTEREST RATE MATURITY DATE DATED DATE 

Variable* July 1, 2032 March 27, 2017 
 
REGISTERED OWNER: UNPQUA BANK 
 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: _____________________ DOLLARS 

 
 

The TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT, a local health care district, duly organized 
and existing under the laws of the State of California (herein called the “District”), for value 
received, hereby promises to pay (but only out of the Revenues and other moneys and securities 
hereinafter referred to) to the Registered Owner identified above or registered assigns (the 
“Registered Owner”), on the Maturity Date stated above (subject to any right of prior 
redemption hereinafter mentioned), the Principal Amount stated above, in lawful money of the 
United States of America; and to pay interest thereon in like lawful money from the Interest 
Payment Date (as herein defined) next preceding the date of authentication of this Bond (unless 
this Bond is authenticated on or before June 15, 2017, in which event it shall bear interest from 
the Dated Date stated above) until payment of such principal sum shall be discharged as 
provided in the Indenture hereinafter mentioned, at the Interest Rate per annum stated above, 
payable semiannually on each January 1 and July 1, commencing July 1, 2017 (each, an “Interest 
Payment Date”). The principal (or redemption price) hereof is payable at the Principal 
Corporate Trust Office (as such term is defined in the hereinafter defined Indenture) of U.S. 
Bank National Association (together with any successor trustee under the Indenture, the 

                                                        
* Interest is payable at a variable rate equal to 65% of the aggregate of the 30-day LIBOR plus 1.70%. If an Event 

of Default shall occur, interest shall be payable at the Default Rate and upon, the occurrence of an Event of 
Taxability, interest shall be payable at the Taxable Rate, as set forth in the Indenture. 

Page 102 of 156



Exhibit A 
Page 2 

“Trustee”). Interest hereon is payable by check of the Trustee mailed by first class mail on each 
Interest Payment Date to the Registered Owner as of the fifteenth (15th) day of the month 
preceding each Interest Payment Date (except as otherwise provided in the Indenture with 
respect to defaulted interest) at the address shown on the registration books maintained by the 
Trustee; provided however, that payment of interest will be made by wire transfer in immediately 
available funds to an account in the United States of America to any Registered Owner of Bonds 
(hereinafter defined) in the aggregate principal amount of $1,000,000 or more who shall furnish 
written wire instructions to the Trustee before the fifteenth day of the month preceding the 
applicable Interest Payment Date. Interest on the Bonds shall be calculated on the basis of a 360-
day year comprised of twelve 30-day months. 

 
This Bond is one of a duly authorized issue of bonds of the District designated as Tahoe 

Forest Hospital District (Placer and Nevada Counties, California) Revenue Bonds” (herein 
called the “Bonds”), unlimited in aggregate principal amount, except as otherwise provided in 
the Indenture hereinafter mentioned, which issue consists or may consist of one or more series 
of varying dates, maturities, interest rates, redemption and other provisions, all issued pursuant 
to the provisions of the section 53570 et seq. of the California Government Code (herein called 
the “Law”), and pursuant to an Indenture of Trust, dated as of July 1, 1999, by and between the 
District and BNY Western Trust Company, as trustee (the “Trustee”), as amended and 
supplemented by that certain First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 1, 2002, by and 
between the District and BNY Western Trust Company, as trustee, as further amended and 
supplemented by that certain Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of February 1, 2006, by 
and between the District and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., as trustee, as further 
amended and supplemented by that certain Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 1, 
2006, by and between the District and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., as trustee, 
as further amended and supplemented by that certain Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as 
of May 1, 2015, by and between the District and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee, and 
as further amended and supplemented by that certain Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated as 
of March 1, 2017, by and between the District and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee 
(collectively, the “Indenture”). 

 
This Bond is also one of a duly authorized series of Bonds designated “Tahoe Forest 

Hospital District (Placer and Nevada Counties, California) Variable Rate Refunding Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2017 (herein called the “2017 Bonds”), in the aggregate principal amount of 
_____________ dollars ($_________), issued to refund the District’s outstanding Tahoe Forest 
Hospital District (Placer and Nevada Counties, California) Variable Rate Demand Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2002. 

 
Reference is hereby made to the Indenture (a copy of which is on file at the Principal 

Corporate Trust Office of the Trustee) and all indentures supplemental thereto and to the Law 
for a description of the rights thereunder of the registered owners of the Bonds, of the nature 
and extent of the security, of the rights, duties and immunities of the Trustee and of the rights 
and obligations of the District thereunder, to all the provisions of which Indenture the 
registered owner of this Bond, by acceptance hereof, assents and agrees. 

 
The 2017 Bonds are subject to redemption prior to their respective stated maturities at 

the option of the District as a whole on any date, or in part by such maturities as are selected by 
the District (or if the District fails to designate such maturities, in inverse order of maturity and 
by lot within a maturity) on any date, from moneys deposited in the Special Redemption 
Account derived from the proceeds of insurance or condemnation awards with respect to the 
Facilities, at the principal amount thereof and interest accrued thereon to the date fixed for 
redemption, as indicated below. 

 

Page 103 of 156



Exhibit A 
Page 3 

The 2017 Bonds are subject to redemption prior to their stated maturity, at the option of 
the District, in whole or in part on any date, in inverse order of sinking fund payment dates, at a 
redemption price equal to the principal amount of  2017 Bonds called for redemption, together 
with interest accrued thereon to the date fixed for redemption, plus a premium as shown in the 
following table: 

 
Redemption Period Redemption Premium 

Closing Date through February 28, 2020 3% 
March 1, 2020, through February 28, 2023 2% 
March 1, 2023, through February 28, 2026 1% 
March 1, 2026, and thereafter 0% 

 
The 2017 Bonds are subject to mandatory redemption on July 1 in each year on and after 

July 1, 2017, to and including July 1, 2032, from mandatory sinking fund installments to be paid 
by the District with respect to each such redemption date, at a redemption price equal to the 
principal amount thereof to be redeemed, together with accrued interest thereon to the date 
fixed for redemption, without premium, as follows: 

 
 Mandatory  Principal  Mandatory  Principal 

Redemption Date  Amount to be Redemption Date  Amount to be 
(July 1) Redeemed (July 1) Redeemed 
2017  2025  
2018  2026  
2019  2027  
2020  2028  
2021  2029  
2022  2030  
2023  2031  
2024  2032†  

   
†Maturity 

 
In the event that the Trustee shall optionally redeem 2017 Bonds in part but not in 

whole, the amount of 2017 Bonds to be redeemed from mandatory sinking fund installments in 
each subsequent year shall be reduced pro rata. 

 
If an Event of Default (as that term is defined in the Indenture) shall occur, the principal 

of all Bonds may be declared due and payable upon the conditions, in the manner and with the 
effect provided in the Indenture. The Indenture provides that in certain events such declaration 
and its consequences may be rescinded by the registered owners of not less than a majority in 
aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding, or by the Trustee. 

 
Bonds are transferable by the registered owner hereof, in person or by his attorney duly 

authorized in writing, at the office of the Trustee but only in the manner, subject to the 
limitations and upon payment of the charges, if any, provided in the Indenture, and upon 
surrender and cancellation of this Bond. Upon such transfer a new Bond or Bonds, of 
authorized denomination or denominations, of the same series and maturity for the same 
aggregate principal amount, will be issued to the transferee in exchange herefor. 

 
The District and the Trustee may treat the registered owner hereof as the absolute owner 

hereof for all purposes, and the District and the Trustee shall not be affected by any notice to the 
contrary. 

 
The Bonds are issuable as fully registered Bonds in “Authorized Denominations.” The 

term Authorized Denominations means $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. Subject to the 

Page 104 of 156



Exhibit A 
Page 4 

limitations provided in the Indenture, Bonds may be exchanged, at said corporate trust office of 
the Trustee, for a like aggregate principal amount of Bonds of other authorized denominations 
of the same maturity. 

 
The Indenture and the rights and obligations of the District and of the registered owners 

of the Bonds and of the Trustee may be modified or amended from time to time and at any time 
in the manner, to the extent, and upon the terms provided in the Indenture; provided that no 
such modification or amendment shall (i) extend the fixed maturity of this Bond, or reduce the 
amount of principal hereof, or extend the time of payment or reduce the amount of any 
Mandatory Sinking Account Payment provided for in the Indenture for the payment of this 
maturity of Bonds, or reduce the rate of interest thereon, or extend the time of payment of 
interest hereon, or reduce any premium payable upon the redemption hereof, without the 
consent of the registered owner hereof, or (ii) reduce the percentage of Bonds the consent of the 
registered owners of which is required to effect any such modification or amendment, or permit 
the creation of any lien on the Revenues and other assets pledged as security for the Bonds prior 
to or on a parity with the lien created by the Indenture, or deprive the registered owners of the 
Bonds of the lien created by the Indenture on such Revenues and other assets (except as 
expressly provided in the Indenture), without the consent of the registered owners of all Bonds 
then outstanding, all as more fully set forth in the Indenture. 

 
The Bonds and the interest thereon are payable from Revenues (as that term is defined 

in the Indenture) and are secured by a pledge and assignment of said Revenues and of amounts 
held in the funds and accounts established pursuant to the Indenture (except any amounts held 
in the Rebate Fund, as such term is defined in the Indenture), subject only to the provisions of 
the Indenture permitting the application thereof for the purposes and on the terms and 
conditions set forth in the Indenture.  

 
The Bonds are limited obligations of the District and are not a lien or charge upon the 

funds or property of the District, except to the extent of the aforementioned pledge and 
assignment. NEITHER THE FAITH AND CREDIT NOR THE TAXING POWER OF THE 
DISTRICT IS PLEDGED TO THE PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL OF, PREMIUM, IF ANY, OR 
INTEREST ON THE BONDS. 

 
It is hereby certified and recited that any and all conditions, things and acts required to 

exist, to have happened and to have been performed precedent to and in the issuance of this 
Bond do exist, have happened and have been performed in due time, form and manner as 
required by the Law and by the Constitution and laws of the State of California, and that the 
amount of this Bond, together with all other indebtedness of the District, does not exceed any 
limit prescribed by the Law, or by the Constitution and laws of the State of California, and is not 
in excess of the amount of Bonds permitted to be issued under the Indenture. 

 
This Bond shall not be entitled to any benefit under the Indenture, or become valid or 

obligatory for any purpose, until the certificate of authentication and registration hereon 
endorsed shall have been signed by the Trustee. 

 

Page 105 of 156



Exhibit A 
Page 5 

IN WITNESS HEREOF, Tahoe Forest Hospital District has caused this Bond to be 
executed in its name and on its behalf by the facsimile signature of the President of its Board of 
Directors and attested by the facsimile signature of the Secretary of its Board of Directors, all as 
of the dated date identified above. 

 
TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
By    

President of the Board of Directors 
Attest: 
 
 
   

Secretary of the Board of Directors 
 
 

FORM OF TRUSTEE’S CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 
 
 
This is one of the 2017 Bonds described in the within-mentioned Indenture and 

registered on the registration books of the Trustee. 
 
Dated: 

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as 
Trustee 
 
 
 
By    

Authorized Signatory 
 

Page 106 of 156



Exhibit A 
Page 6 

FORM OF ASSIGNMENT 
 
 
For value received the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto 

 
              
 
              
 
              

(Name, Address and Tax Identification or Social Security Number of Assignee) 
 
the within-registered Bond and hereby irrevocably constitute(s) and appoints(s)  
 
              
attorney, to transfer the same on the Bond register of the Trustee with full power of substitution in the 
premises. 

 
Dated:     

Signature: 
 
 
   
Note: The signature(s) on this Assignment must 
correspond with the name(s) as written on the face of 
the within Bond in every particular without alteration 
or enlargement or any change whatsoever. 

Signature Guaranteed: 
 
 
    
Note: Signature(s) must be guaranteed by a financial 
institution that is a member of the Securities Transfer 
Agents Medallion Program (“STAMP”), the Stock 
Exchanges Medallion Program (“SEMP”) or the New 
York Stock Exchange, Inc. Medallions Securities 
Program (“MSP”) or an “eligible guarantor.” 

 

Page 107 of 156



Exhibit B 
Page 1 

EXHIBIT B 
 

FORM OF INVESTOR’S LETTER 
 
 
 
 

Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
Truckee, California 
 
U.S. Bank National Association 
San Francisco, California 

 
Re: Tahoe Forest Hospital District (Placer and Nevada Counties, California) 

Variable Rate Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2017 
 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 

 
The undersigned authorized representative of __________ (the “Purchaser”), being the 

purchaser of the above-referenced bonds (the “2017 Bonds”) does hereby certify, represent and 
warrant for the benefit of the Tahoe Forest Hospital District (the “District”) and the U.S. Bank 
National Association (the “Trustee”) that: 

 
(a) The Purchaser (MARK OR INDICATE APPROPRIATELY): 
 
[___] is a “qualified institutional buyer” (a “Qualified Institutional Buyer”) 

within the meaning of Rule 144A promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as 
amended (the “Securities Act”), 

 
[___] is an “accredited investor” as defined in Section 501(a)(1), (2), (3) or (7) of 

Regulation D promulgated under the Securities Act (an “Accredited Investor”), or 
 
[___] is a trust, partnership, custodial arrangement or similar entity, interests in 

which are offered and sold in a private placement or limited offering only to Qualified 
Institutional Buyers or Accredited Investors. 

 
(b) The Purchaser understands that the 2017 Bonds have not been registered 

under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or under any state securities 
laws. The Purchaser agrees that it will comply with any applicable state and federal 
securities laws then in effect with respect to any disposition of the 2017 Bonds by it, and 
further acknowledges that any current exemption from registration of the 2017 Bonds 
does not affect or diminish such requirements. 

 
(c) The Purchaser is not now and has never been controlled by, or under 

common control with, the District. The District has never been and is not now controlled 
by the Purchaser. The Purchaser has entered into no arrangements with the District or 
with any affiliate in connection with the 2017 Bonds, other than as disclosed to the 
District. 

 
(d) The Purchaser has authority to purchase the 2017 Bonds and to execute 

this letter and any other instruments and documents required to be executed by the 
Purchaser in connection with the purchase of the 2017 Bonds. The individual who is 

Page 108 of 156



Exhibit B 
Page 2 

signing this letter on behalf of the Purchaser is a duly appointed, qualified, and acting 
officer of the Purchaser and is authorized to cause the Purchaser to make the 2017 
Bonds, representations and warranties contained herein by execution of this letter on 
behalf of the Purchaser.  

 
(e) The Purchaser understands that the 2017 Bonds are not secured by any 

pledge of any moneys received or to be received from taxation by the District, the State 
of California or any political subdivision or taxing district thereof; that the 2017 Bonds 
will never represent or constitute a general obligation or a pledge of the faith and credit 
of the District, the State of California or any political subdivision thereof; that no right 
will exist to have taxes levied by the State of California or any political subdivision 
thereof for the payment of principal and interest with respect to the 2017 Bonds; and that 
the liability of the District with respect to the 2017 Bonds is subject to further limitations 
as set forth in the Lease Agreement. 

 
(f) The Purchaser has been informed that the 2017 Bonds (i) have not been 

and will not be registered or otherwise qualified for sale under the “Blue Sky” laws and 
regulations of any jurisdiction, and (ii) will not be listed on any stock or other securities 
exchange. 

 
(g) The Purchaser acknowledges that it has the right to sell and transfer the 

2017 Bonds, subject to compliance with the transfer restrictions set forth in Section 2.03 
of the Fifth Supplemental Indenture of Trust, including in certain circumstances the 
requirement for the delivery to the District and the Trustee of an investor’s letter in the 
same form as this Investor’s Letter, including this paragraph. Failure to comply with the 
provisions of Section 2.03 of the Fifth Supplemental Indenture of Trust shall cause the 
purported transfer to be null and void. The Purchaser agrees to indemnify and hold 
harmless the District with respect to any claim asserted against the District that arises 
with respect to any sale, transfer or other disposition of the 2017 Bonds by the Purchaser 
or any transferee thereof in violation of the provisions of the Fifth Supplemental 
Indenture of Trust. 

 
(h) The Purchaser acknowledges that the 2017 Bonds are exempt from the 

requirements of Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission and that the 
District has not undertaken to provide any continuing disclosure with respect to the 
2017 Bonds. 

 
(i) The Purchaser intends to treat the acquisition of the 2017 Bonds as a loan 

and hold the 2017 Bonds in its loan portfolio. 
 
The Purchaser acknowledges that the sale of the 2017 Bonds to the Purchaser is made in 

reliance upon the certifications, representations and warranties herein by the addressees hereto. 
Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined have the meanings given such terms 
in the Indenture. 

 
[PURCHASER] 
 
 
 
By    
Name    
Title    

 

Page 109 of 156



Quint & Thimmig LLP 12/24/16 
 01/10/17 
 
 

20017.09 

TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-02 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FORM AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION 
AND DELIVERY OF A FIFTH SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE OF TRUST AND A 

BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT IN CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUANCE, SALE 
AND DELIVERY OF THE TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT (PLACER AND 
NEVADA COUNTIES, CALIFORNIA) VARIABLE RATE REFUNDING REVENUE 

BONDS, SERIES 2017, AND APPROVING CERTAIN OTHER ACTIONS 
 

 
 

WHEREAS, TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT (the “District”) is a 
healthcare district duly organized and existing under the Local Health Care District Law 
of the State of California; 

 
WHEREAS, the District has heretofore issued its $14,830,000 Tahoe Forest 

Hospital District Revenue Bonds, Series 1999A (the “1999A Bonds”), and its $5,125,000 
Tahoe Forest Hospital District Revenue Bonds, Series 1999B (the “1999B Bonds, and, 
with the 1999A Bonds, the “1999 Bonds”), for the purpose of financing and refinancing 
the remodeling, expansion, improvement and equipping of the health facilities owned 
and operated by the District; 

 
WHEREAS, the 1999 Bonds were issued pursuant to that certain Indenture of 

Trust, dated as of July 1, 1999 (the “Original Indenture”), by and between the District 
and BNY Western Trust Company, as trustee; 

 
WHEREAS, the District has also heretofore issued its $12,000,000 Tahoe Forest 

Hospital District (Placer and Nevada Counties, California) Variable Rate Demand 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2002, currently outstanding in the principal amount of $8,890,000 
(the “2002 Bonds”), for the purpose of financing the remodeling, expansion, 
improvement and equipping of the health facilities owned and operated by the District; 

 
WHEREAS, the 2002 Bonds were issued pursuant to the Original Indenture, as 

amended and supplemented by that certain First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of 
October 1, 2002, by and between the District and BNY Western Trust Company, as 
trustee; 

 
WHEREAS, the District has also heretofore issued its $27,385,000 Tahoe Forest 

Hospital District (Placer and Nevada Counties, California) Hospital Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2006 (the “2006 Bonds”), for the purpose of (a) refunding a portion of the 1999A 
Bonds and (b) financing the remodeling, expansion, improvement and equipping of the 
health facilities owned and operated by the District; 

 

Page 110 of 156



-2- 

WHEREAS, the 2006 Bonds were issued pursuant to the Original Indenture, as 
amended and supplemented, and as amended and supplemented by that certain Second 
Supplemental Indenture, dated as of February 1, 2006, by and between the District and 
The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., as successor trustee, and that certain 
Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 1, 2006, by and between the District and 
The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., as successor trustee; 

 
WHEREAS, the District has also heretofore issued its $20,979,000 Tahoe Forest 

Hospital District (Placer and Nevada Counties, California) Hospital Refunding Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2015, currently outstanding in the principal amount of $20,217,886 (the 
“2015 Bonds”), for the purpose of refunding the 2006 Bonds; 

 
WHEREAS, the 2015 Bonds were issued pursuant to the Original Indenture, as 

amended and supplemented and as amended and supplemented by that certain Fourth 
Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 1, 2015, by and between the District and U.S. 
Bank National Association, as successor trustee (the “Trustee”); 

 
WHEREAS, none of the 1999 Bonds or 2006 Bonds are currently outstanding; 
 
WHEREAS, the District desires to refund all outstanding 2002 Bonds; 
 
WHEREAS, to refund the 2002 Bonds, the District has determined to issue its 

Tahoe Forest Hospital District (Placer and Nevada Counties, California) Variable Rate 
Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2017 (the “2017 Bonds”), on a parity as to payment 
and security with the 2015 Bonds; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District has determined to authorize the officers of the District to 

take all necessary action to accomplish the issuance, sale and delivery of the 2017 Bonds; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby ORDERED and DETERMINED, as follows: 
 
Section 1. The issuance of the 2017 Bonds to refund the 2002 Bonds is hereby 

authorized and approved. 
 
Section 2. The form of the fifth supplemental indenture of trust, by and between 

the District and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”), amending 
and supplementing the Original Indenture, as amended, as presented to this meeting 
(the “Fifth Supplemental Indenture”), is hereby approved. The President of the Board of 
Directors (the “Board”) of the District, the Vice President of the Board, the Secretary of 
the Board, the Assistant Secretary of the Board, the Chief Executive Officer of the 
District, the Chief Financial Officer of the District, or any other person authorized by this 
Resolution or other resolution of the Board to act on behalf of the District (the 
“Designated Officers”), acting alone, is hereby authorized and directed, for and in the 
name of the District, to execute and deliver the Fifth Supplemental Indenture in the form 
presented to this meeting, with such changes therein as the officer executing the same 
may approve, such approval to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery 

Page 111 of 156



-3- 

of the Fifth Supplemental Indenture. The various provisions of the 2017 Bonds shall be 
as provided in the Fifth Supplemental Indenture as finally executed. 

 
Section 3 . The form of bond purchase agreement by and between the District and 

Umpqua Bank (the “Purchaser”), as presented to this meeting (the “Bond Purchase 
Agreement”), is hereby approved. Any Designated Officer, acting alone, is hereby 
authorized and directed for and in the name of the District, to execute and deliver the 
Bond Purchase Agreement, in the form presented to this meeting, with such changes 
therein as the officer executing the same may approve, such approval to be conclusively 
evidenced by the execution and delivery of the Bond Purchase Agreement. 

 
Section 4. Each Designated Officer is hereby authorized and directed, for and in 

the name of the District, to execute and deliver any other documents as may be deemed 
necessary or appropriate to implement the refunding of the 2002 Bonds or to issue the 
2017 Bonds, such approval to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery 
of such documents. 

 
Section 5. The 2017 Bonds shall be executed by the manual or facsimile signature 

of the President, the Vice President, the Chief Executive Officer or the Chief Financial 
Officer, or the designee thereof, and attested by the manual or facsimile signature of the 
Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the Board, in the form set forth in and otherwise in 
accordance with the Fifth Supplemental Indenture. 

 
Section 6. The 2017 Bonds, when so executed, shall be delivered to the Trustee for 

authentication by the Trustee. The Trustee is hereby requested and directed to 
authenticate the 2017 Bonds by executing the Trustee’s Certificate of Authentication 
appearing thereon, and to deliver the 2017 Bonds, when duly executed and 
authenticated, to the order of the Purchaser in accordance with written instructions of 
the District. Said instructions shall provide for the delivery of the 2017 Bonds to the 
order of the Purchaser upon payment of the purchase price thereof. 

 
Section 7. The Secretary or the Assistant Secretary of the Board is hereby 

authorized and directed to attest the signature of the President, the Vice President, the 
Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, or the designee thereof, as may be 
required in connection with the execution and delivery of the Fifth Supplemental 
Indenture, the Bond Purchase Agreement and the 2017 Bonds in accordance with this 
Resolution. 

 
Section 8. The President, the Vice President, the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief 

Financial Officer, or the designee thereof, are each hereby authorized and directed to do 
the following with respect to the issuance of the 2017 Bonds: 

 
(a) take any and all actions and execute, acknowledge, deliver and file any and 

all agreements, instruments or other documents of any kind required of the District; and 
 

Page 112 of 156



-4- 

(b) act as an agent to the District for the purposes of issuing the 2017 Bonds and 
any additional negotiations, authorizations, approval, executions, consents, notices, 
deliveries or other acts required to issue such 2017 Bonds. 

 
Section 9. All actions taken by the President, the Vice President, the Chief 

Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, or the designee thereof, and other officers 
or directors of the District which have been undertaken to date or which will be 
undertaken with respect to the planning, negotiation, authorization, approvals and 
implementation of the financing plan are hereby ratified, confirmed and approved in all 
respects. 

 
Section 10. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage. 
 

* * * * * * *  
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at the meeting of the Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
Board of Directors held on the 26th day of January, 2017, by the following vote:  

 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
ABSTAIN: 

 
 
 
   

Charles Zipkin, M.D. 
President, Board of Directors 
Tahoe Forest Hospital District 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
   

Randy Hill  
Secretary, Board of Directors 

Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
 

Page 113 of 156



Quint & Thimmig LLP 12/24/16 
 01/10/17 
 
 

20017.09 

 
$___________ 

TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
(Placer and Nevada Counties, California) 

Variable Rate Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2017 
 
 

 
BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

 
 
 

January 27, 2017 
 
 
Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
10121 Pine Avenue 
Truckee, California 96160  
 
Ladies and Gentlemen:  
 

Umpqua Bank (the “Purchaser”), offers to enter into this Bond Purchase Agreement (the 
“Bond Purchase Agreement”) with Tahoe Forest Hospital District (the “District”), which, upon 
acceptance of this offer, will be binding upon the District and the Purchaser. 

 
This offer is made subject to acceptance by the District at or before 11:59 p.m., California 

time, on the date hereof, and, if not so accepted, will be subject to withdrawal by the Purchaser 
upon written notice delivered to the District at any time prior to such acceptance. The Purchaser 
is not acting as a fiduciary of the District, but rather is acting solely in its capacity as Purchaser 
for its own account. 

 
Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings 

assigned to them in the Indenture of Trust, dated as of July 1, 1999, by and between the District 
and BNY Western Trust Company, as trustee, as amended and supplemented by that certain 
First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 1, 2002, by and between the District and BNY 
Western Trust Company, as trustee, as further amended and supplemented by that certain 
Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of February 1, 2006, by and between the District and 
The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., as successor trustee, as further amended and 
supplemented by that certain Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 1, 2006, by and 
between the District and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., as successor trustee, as 
further amended and supplemented by that certain Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of 
May 1, 2015, by and between the District and U.S. Bank National Association, as successor 
trustee (the “Trustee”), and as further amended and supplemented by that certain Fifth 
Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March 1, 2017 (the “Fifth Supplement”), by and between 
the District and the Trustee (collectively, the “Indenture”). 

 
The District hereby acknowledges and agrees that (a) the purchase of the Bonds 

pursuant to this Bond Purchase Agreement is an arm’s-length commercial transaction between 
the District and the Purchaser, (b) in connection therewith and with the discussions leading up 
to the consummation of such transaction, the Purchaser is and has been acting solely as a 
principal and is not acting as the agent or fiduciary of the District, (c) the Purchaser has not 
assumed an advisory or fiduciary responsibility in favor of the District with respect to the 
Bonds contemplated hereby or the discussions leading thereto (irrespective of whether the 

Page 114 of 156



-2- 

Purchaser has provided other services or is currently providing other services to the District on 
other matters) and the Purchaser has no obligation to the District with respect to the purchase of 
the Bonds contemplated hereby except the obligations expressly set forth in this Bond Purchase 
Agreement, and (d) the District has consulted its own legal, financial and other advisors to the 
extent it has deemed appropriate in connection with the issuance of the Bonds and the other 
matters contemplated by this Bond Purchase Agreement. 

 
Section 1. Purchase of Bonds.  
 
(a) Upon the terms and conditions and upon the basis of the representations, warranties 

and agreements set forth herein, the Purchaser hereby agree to purchase from the District, and 
the District hereby agrees to sell to the Purchaser, the District’s $___________ aggregate 
principal amount of Tahoe Forest Hospital District (Placer and Nevada Counties, California) 
Variable Rate Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2017 (the “Bonds”), at a purchase price of 
$___________.00 (representing the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds). The Bonds will be 
dated as of the Closing Date (hereinafter defined) and interest thereon will be payable 
semiannually on January 1 and July 1 of each year, commencing on July 1, 2017. The Bonds will 
mature on July 1, 2032, and will bear interest at variable rate equal to 65% of the aggregate of 
the 30-day LIBOR plus 1.70% (or the Default Rate or the Taxable Rate), calculated on the basis of 
a three hundred sixty (360) day year of twelve thirty (30) day months. The Bonds will be subject 
to optional and sinking fund redemption as set forth in Schedule A attached hereto. 

 
(b) The Bonds will be as described in and will be issued pursuant to the Indenture, 

substantially in the form previously submitted to the Purchaser, with only such changes therein 
as shall be mutually agreed upon. The proceeds from the sale of the Bonds will be used to (i) 
refund the District’s outstanding Tahoe Forest Hospital District (Placer and Nevada Counties, 
California) Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 2002, currently outstanding in the 
principal amount of $8,890,000 (the “2002 Bonds”), issued to finance the remodeling, expansion, 
improvement and equipping of the health facilities owned and operated by the District, and (iii) 
pay certain costs and expenses related to the issuance of the Bonds. 

 
(c) The Bonds will be limited obligations of the District payable solely from Revenues 

and secured by a pledge of the District’s Gross Revenues and of amounts held in certain funds 
and accounts established pursuant to the Indenture, subject only to the provisions of the 
Indenture permitting the application thereof for the purposes and on the terms and conditions 
set forth in the Indenture. The Bonds will be on a parity as to payment and security with the 
District’s $20,979,000 Tahoe Forest Hospital District (Placer and Nevada Counties, California) 
Hospital Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2015, currently outstanding in the principal amount 
of $20,217,886. 

 
 
Section 2. Private Placement.  
 
(a) The Purchaser has sufficient knowledge and experience in financial and business 

matters, including purchase and ownership of municipal and other obligations of a nature 
similar to the Bonds to be able to evaluate the risks and merits of the purchase of the Bonds. 

 
(b) The Purchaser is acquiring the Bonds for its own account and not with a view to, or 

for sale in connection with, any distribution of the Bonds or any part thereof. The Purchaser has 
not offered to sell, solicited offers to buy, or agreed to sell the Bonds or any part thereof, and the 
Purchaser has no current intention of reselling or otherwise disposing of the Bonds; provided, 
however, such representation shall not preclude the Purchaser from transferring or selling of the 
Bonds in accordance with the Indenture. The Purchaser is not acting in a broker-dealer capacity 

Page 115 of 156



-3- 

in connection with its purchase of the Bonds. The Purchaser intends to book and hold the Bonds 
as a loan in its loan portfolio. 

 
(c) The Purchaser has made its own credit inquiry and analysis with respect to the 

District and the Bonds and has made an independent credit decision based upon such inquiry 
and analysis and in reliance on the truth, accuracy, and completeness of the representations and 
warranties of the District set forth in the Indenture and this Bond Purchase Agreement and in 
the information set forth in any materials submitted to the Purchaser by the District. The 
Purchaser acknowledges that it has reviewed information, including financial statements and 
other financial information regarding the District, and the Purchaser has had the opportunity to 
ask questions of and receive answers from knowledgeable individuals concerning the District 
and the Bonds.  

 
(d) The Purchaser understands that the Bonds have not been registered under the 

United States Securities Act of 1933 or under any state securities laws. The Purchaser agrees that 
it will comply with any applicable state and federal securities laws then in effect with respect to 
any disposition of the Bonds by it, and further acknowledges that any current exemption from 
registration of the Bonds does not affect or diminish such requirements. 

 
(e) The Purchaser has authority to purchase the Bonds and to execute this Bond 

Purchase Agreement and any other instruments and documents required to be executed by the 
Purchaser in connection with the purchase of the Bonds. The undersigned is a duly appointed, 
qualified, and acting officer of the Purchaser and is authorized to cause the Purchaser to make 
the representations and warranties contained herein by execution of this Bond Purchase 
Agreement on behalf of the Purchaser.  

 
(f) The Purchaser has been informed that the Bonds (i) have not been and will not be 

registered or otherwise qualified for sale under the “Blue Sky” laws and regulations of any 
jurisdiction, and (ii) will not be listed on any stock or other securities exchange. 

 
(g) The Purchaser acknowledges that the Bonds are transferable with certain 

requirements, as described in the Indenture. 
 
(h) The Purchaser has been informed that the Bonds are exempt from the requirements 

of Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission and that the District has not 
undertaken to provide any continuing disclosure with respect to the Bonds. 

 
Section 3. Closing.  
 
(a) At 8:00 a.m., Pacific Standard time, on March 27, 2017, or on such earlier or later date 

and time as shall be agreed upon in writing by the District and the Purchaser (the “Closing 
Date”), the District shall direct the Trustee to deliver the Bonds (which may be typewritten) to 
the Purchaser, in definitive form, duly executed and authenticated, at the offices of Quint & 
Thimmig LLP, Larkspur, California (“Bond Counsel”), or at such other location as may be 
designated by the Purchaser and approved by the District, and shall deliver to the Purchaser the 
other documents herein mentioned at the offices of Bond Counsel, or such other location as may 
be mutually agreed upon by the District and the Purchaser. The Purchaser will accept such 
delivery and pay the purchase price of the Bonds as set forth in Section 1(a) hereof in 
immediately available funds by federal funds or wire transfer to the order of the Trustee. The 
Bonds shall be issued in the form of one fully registered Bond registered in the name of the 
Purchaser. 

 
(b) As required by the Purchaser, the Bonds will not be (i) assigned a rating by any 

rating agency, (ii) registered with The Depository Trust Company or any other securities 

Page 116 of 156



-4- 

depository, (iii) issued pursuant to any type of offering document or official statement, or (iv) 
assigned a CUSIP number by Standard & Poor’s CUSIP Service Bureau. 

 
(c) It shall be a condition to the obligation of the Purchaser to purchase and accept 

delivery of the Bonds that all Bonds be sold and delivered by the District to the Purchaser at the 
Closing and that all obligations of the parties to this Bond Purchase Agreement shall have been 
satisfied or waived in writing prior to the Closing.  

 
Section 4. Representations, Warranties and Agreements of the District. The District 

represents and warrants to and agrees with the Purchaser that:  
 
(a) The District is and will be at the Closing Date a political subdivision of the State of 

California and a local health care district duly organized and existing under The Local Health 
Care District Law, constituting Division 23 of the California Health and Safety Code, with the 
full power and authority to issue the Bonds and to execute this Bond Purchase Agreement and 
the Indenture, and to carry out and consummate all transactions on its part contemplated by 
this Bond Purchase Agreement and the Indenture;  

 
(b) When delivered to and paid for by the Purchaser at the Closing in accordance with 

the provisions of this Bond Purchase Agreement, the Bonds will have been duly authorized, 
executed, issued and delivered and will constitute valid and binding limited obligations of the 
District in conformity with, and entitled to the benefit and security of, the Indenture;  

 
(c) The issuance of the Bonds and the execution and delivery of the Indenture and this 

Bond Purchase Agreement, and compliance with the provisions on the District’s part contained 
therein or herein, will not conflict with or constitute a breach of or default under any law, 
administrative regulation, judgment, decree, loan agreement, indenture, bond, note, resolution, 
agreement or other instrument to which the District is a party or is otherwise subject, nor will 
any such issuance, execution, delivery, adoption or compliance result in the creation or 
imposition of any lien, charge or other security interest or encumbrance of any nature 
whatsoever upon any of the properties or assets of the District under the terms of any such law, 
administrative regulation, judgment, decree, loan agreement, indenture, bond, note, resolution, 
agreement or other instrument, except as provided by the Indenture;  

 
(d) The District is not in breach of or in default under any existing law or administrative 

regulation of the State of California or the United States or any applicable judgment or decree or 
any loan agreement, indenture, bond, note, mortgage, resolution, agreement or other 
instrument to which the District is a party or is otherwise subject, and no event has occurred 
and is continuing which, with the passage of time or the giving of notice, or both, would 
constitute a default or an event of default thereunder, in either case in any manner or to any 
extent which could have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the District, the 
operation by the District of its facilities (the “Health Facilities”) or the transactions 
contemplated by this Bond Purchase Agreement, or have an adverse effect on the validity or 
enforceability in accordance with their respective terms of the Bonds, the Indenture or the Fifth 
Supplement, or in any way adversely affect the existence or powers of the District or in any way 
materially adversely affect the excludability from gross income for federal or State income tax 
purposes of interest on the Bonds;  

 
(e) The District is not, nor has it been at any time subsequent to June 30, 2016, in default 

in the payment of principal of or interest on any obligation issued or guaranteed by the District;  
 
(f) No consent or approval of any trustee or holder of any indebtedness of the District, 

and no consent, permission, authorization, order or license of, or filing or registration with, any 
governmental authority (except in connection with Blue Sky proceedings, as to which no 

Page 117 of 156



-5- 

representation is being made) is necessary in connection with the execution and delivery of this 
Bond Purchase Agreement or the Indenture or the consummation of any transaction therein or 
herein contemplated, except as have been obtained or made and are in full force and effect. The 
District makes no representation as to any approvals or actions as may be required under any 
state or federal blue sky or securities laws;  

 
(g) The District has received and there remain currently in full force and effect, or will 

receive prior to the delivery of the Bonds, all governmental consents and approvals (i) that 
would constitute a condition precedent to the performance by the District of its obligations 
hereunder or under the Indenture or the consummation of the transactions contemplated by 
this Bond Purchase Agreement, and (ii) to qualify the District for reimbursement for its costs 
and expenses under all third party payor programs accounting for a significant portion of the 
District’s gross revenues, including without limitation, Medicare and Medi-Cal;  

 
(h) No Event of Default has occurred or is continuing under the Indenture; 
 
(i) Between the date hereof and the Closing Date, the District will not, without the prior 

written consent of the Purchaser, incur any material liabilities, direct or contingent, other than 
in the ordinary course of business;  

 
(j) The Health Facilities are owned or leased and operated by the District. The District 

has all necessary leases, licenses, permits, accreditations and certifications required to carry on 
and operate the Health Facilities. The District has all power and authority to consummate the 
transactions contemplated by this Bond Purchase Agreement, including the execution, delivery 
and/or approval of all documents and agreements referred to herein. The District has not 
received notice of an alleged violation and, to the best of its knowledge, the District is not in 
violation of any zoning, land use, environmental or other similar law or regulation applicable to 
any of the District’s property or the Health Facilities that could adversely affect the District’s 
operations or financial condition;  

 
(k) The District duly authorized all necessary action to be taken by it for: (i) the issuance 

and sale of the Bonds by the District upon the terms and conditions set forth herein and in the 
Indenture and the approval of the Bonds; and (ii) the execution, delivery and receipt of this 
Bond Purchase Agreement and the Indenture, and any and all such agreements, certificates and 
documents as may be required to be executed, delivered and received by the District to carry 
out, effect and consummate the transactions contemplated hereby, including but not limited to 
such certifications as may be necessary to establish and preserve excludability from gross 
income for federal income tax purposes of interest on the Bonds;  

 
(l) The District’s audited financial statements as of June 30, 2016, and for the fiscal year 

then ended, are a fair presentation of the financial position of the District as of the dates 
indicated and the results of its operations and changes in its net assets for the periods specified. 
Since June 30, 2016, there has been no material adverse change in the condition, financial or 
otherwise, of the District from that set forth in the audited financial statements as of and for the 
period ended that date; and the District has not, since June 30, 2016, incurred any material 
liabilities, directly or indirectly, except in the ordinary course of its operations;  

 
(m) The District will not take or omit to take any action that will in any way cause the 

proceeds from the sale of the Bonds to be applied or result in such proceeds being applied in a 
manner other than as provided in the Indenture or to affect the federal and State tax status of 
interest on the Bonds; and  

 
(o) There is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation, at law or in equity 

before or by any court or governmental agency or body, pending or threatened against the 

Page 118 of 156



-6- 

District, to restrain or enjoin the execution or delivery of the Bonds, or in any way contesting or 
affecting the validity or enforceability of the Bonds or the Indenture or contesting the powers of 
the District to enter into or perform its obligations under the foregoing including the ability to 
make all debt service payments on the Bonds. 

 
(p) The resolution of the District approving the execution and delivery of the Fifth 

Supplemental Indenture and this Bond Purchase Agreement has been duly adopted by the 
District, has not been amended, modified or repealed and is in full force and effect on the date 
hereof. 

 
(q) All information, reports and other papers and data furnished by the District to the 

Purchaser were, at the time the same were so furnished, complete and accurate in all material 
respects and insofar as necessary to give the Purchaser a true and accurate knowledge of the 
subject matter and were provided in expectation of the Purchaser’s reliance thereon in entering 
into the transactions contemplated by this Bond Purchase Agreement. No fact is known to the 
District which has had or, so far as the District can now reasonably foresee, may in the future 
have a Material Adverse Effect, which has not been set forth in the financial statements 
previously furnished to the Purchaser or in other such information, reports, papers and data or 
otherwise disclosed in writing to the Purchaser prior to the Closing Date. Any financial, budget 
and other projections furnished to the Purchaser by the District or its or their agents were 
prepared in good faith on the basis of the assumptions stated therein, which assumptions were 
fair and reasonable in light of the conditions existing at the time of delivery of such financial, 
budget or other projections, and represented, and as of the date of this representation, represent 
the District’s best estimate of its future financial performance. No document furnished nor any 
representation, warranty or other written statement made to the Purchaser in connection with 
the negotiation, preparation or execution of this Bond Purchase Agreement contains or will 
contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omits or will omit to state (as of the date 
made or furnished) any material fact necessary in order to make the statements contained 
herein or therein, accurate and complete in all respects. 

 
(r) The District is in compliance in all material respects with all federal, state and local 

laws, regulations, quality and safety standards, accreditation standards and requirements of all 
federal, state or local governmental authorities including, without limitation, Medicare and 
Medi-Cal laws and regulations and those relating to the quality and adequacy of medical care, 
distribution of pharmaceuticals, rate setting, equipment, personnel, operating policies, 
additions to facilities and services and fee splitting. Without limiting the generality of any other 
representation or warranty made herein, the District and each of the Facilities and, to any to the 
best of its knowledge, its licensed employees and contractors (other than contracted agencies) in 
the exercise of their respective duties on behalf of the District or and each of the Facilities, is in 
compliance in all material respects with all applicable statutes, laws, ordinances, rules and 
regulations of any federal, state or local governmental authority with respect to regulatory 
matters primarily relating to patient healthcare (including without limitation Section 1128B(b) 
of the Social Security Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. Section 1320a 7(b) (Criminal Penalties 
Involving Medicare or State Health Care Programs), commonly referred to as the "Federal Anti-
Kickback Statute," and the Social Security Act, as amended, Section 1877, 42 U.S.C. Section 1395 
(Prohibition Against Certain Referrals), commonly referred to as the "Stark Statute" 
(collectively, "Healthcare Laws")). The District has maintained in all material respects all records 
required to be maintained by The Joint Commission, the Food and Drug Administration, Drug 
Enforcement Agency and State Boards of Pharmacy and the federal and state Medicare and 
Medi-Cal programs as required by the Healthcare Laws and, to the knowledge of the District, 
there are no presently existing circumstances which would result or likely would result in 
material violations of the Healthcare Laws. To the knowledge of the District, there currently 
exist no material restrictions, deficiencies, required plans of correction actions or other such 
remedial measures with respect to federal and state Medicare and Medi-Cal certifications or 

Page 119 of 156



-7- 

licensure surveys. The Health Facilities is in compliance in all material respects with all 
requirements for participation in Medicare and Medi-Cal, including, without limitation, the 
Medicare and Medicaid Patient Protection Act of 1987; the Health facilities is in conformance in 
all material respects in with all insurance, reimbursement and cost reporting requirements, and 
has a current provider agreement which is in full force and effect under Medicare and Medi-
Cal, to the extent that the failure to comply would not result in a material adverse effect on the 
District. 

 
(s) Each representation, warranty or agreement stated in any certificate signed by any 

official of the District and delivered to the Purchaser on or before the Closing Date shall 
constitute a representation, warranty or agreement by the District upon which the Purchaser 
shall be entitled to rely.  

 
Section 5. Conditions to the Obligations of the Purchaser. The obligation of the 

Purchaser to purchase, accept delivery of, and pay for the Bonds on the Closing Date shall be 
subject to the performance prior to or concurrently with the Closing Date by the District of its 
obligations to be performed under this Bond Purchase Agreement and the accuracy of the 
representations and warranties of the District contained herein as of the date hereof and as of 
the Closing Date, and shall also be subject to the following additional conditions:  

 
(a) At the time of Closing, (i) each of the Indenture and the Bonds shall have been duly 

authorized, executed and delivered, and each of the foregoing shall be in full force and effect in 
the form heretofore submitted to the Purchaser and shall not have been amended, modified or 
supplemented except as may have been agreed to by the Purchaser, (ii) the proceeds of sale of 
the Bonds shall be paid to the Trustee for deposit or use as described in the Indenture and (iii) 
there shall have been taken in connection with the issuance of the Bonds and with the 
transactions contemplated thereby and by this Bond Purchase Agreement all such actions as, in 
the opinion of Bond Counsel, shall be necessary and appropriate.  

 
(b) Between the date hereof and the Closing Date, the Bonds shall not have been 

materially adversely affected, in the reasonable judgment of the Purchaser, by reason of any of 
the following: 

 
(i) legislation enacted (or resolution passed) by or introduced or pending 

legislation amended in the Congress or recommended for passage by the President of 
the United States, the Secretary of the Treasury or any member of Congress, or a 
decision rendered by a court established under Article III of the Constitution of the 
United States or by the Tax Court of the United States, or an order, ruling, regulation 
(final, temporary or proposed), official statement, press release or other form of notice or 
communication issued or made by or on behalf of the Treasury Department or the 
Internal Revenue Service of the United States, by the President or other agency of the 
federal government or members of Congress with the purpose or effect, directly or 
indirectly, of imposing federal income taxation upon interest as would be received by 
the Purchaser in owning the Bonds; 

 
(ii) the United States shall have become engaged in hostilities which have 

resulted in a declaration of war or a national emergency, or there shall have occurred 
any other outbreak or escalation of hostilities, or a local, national or international 
calamity or crisis, financial or otherwise, the effect of such outbreak or escalation, 
calamity or crisis; 

 
(iii) the declaration of a general banking moratorium by federal, New York or 

California authorities, or the general suspension of trading on any national securities 
exchange; 

Page 120 of 156



-8- 

 
(iv) the imposition by the New York Stock Exchange or other national securities 

exchange, or any governmental authority, of any material restrictions not now in force 
with respect to the Bonds or obligations of the general character of the Bonds or 
securities generally, or the material increase of any such restrictions now in force, 
including those relating to the extension of credit by, or the charge to the net capital 
requirements of, underwriters;  

 
(v) an order, decree or injunction issued by any court of competent jurisdiction, 

or order, ruling, regulation (final, temporary or proposed), official statement or other 
form of notice or communication issued or made by or on behalf of the Securities and 
Exchange Commission, or any other governmental agency having jurisdiction of the 
subject matter, to the effect that (A) obligations of the general character of the Bonds, or 
the Bonds, including any or all underlying arrangements, are not exempt from 
registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or that the Indenture is not 
exempt from qualification under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, or (B) the 
execution and delivery, offering or sale of obligations of the general character of the 
Bonds, or the execution and delivery, offering or sale of the Bonds, including any or all 
underlying obligations, as contemplated hereby, is or would be in violation of the 
federal securities laws as amended and then in effect; or 

 
(vi) there shall have occurred any materially adverse change in the affairs or 

financial condition of the District. 
 

(c) At or prior to the Closing, the Purchaser shall have received the following, in each 
case satisfactory in form and substance to the Purchaser: 

 
(i) A certificate, dated the Closing Date, signed by an authorized officer of the 

District to the effect that (A) since June 30, 2016, the District has not incurred any 
material liabilities, direct or contingent, nor has there been any material adverse change 
in the financial position, results of operation or condition of the District, unless arising 
from transactions in the ordinary course of business; (B) no litigation is pending or, to 
such officer’s best knowledge, threatened (i) to restrain or enjoin the collection of Gross 
Revenues pledged or to be pledged under the Indenture, (ii) in any way contesting or 
affecting any authority for the issuance of the Bonds, the validity of the Bonds, the 
Indenture, the Fifth Supplement or this Bond Purchase Agreement or the exemption 
from federal income taxation of interest on the Bonds or (iii) in any way contesting the 
powers or operations of the District; (C) there has been no change or threatened change 
in the governmental status of the District; (D) at the time of Closing, no default or event 
of default has occurred and is continuing, and no event has occurred and is continuing 
which with the lapse of time or the giving of notice, or both, would constitute a default 
or an event of default under the Indenture, this Bond Purchase Agreement, or any other 
material agreement or material instrument to which the District is a party or by which it 
is or may be bound or to which any of the District’s property or other assets is or may be 
subject; (E) the resolution of the Board of Directors of the District authorizing and 
approving the execution and delivery of the Indenture, the Fifth Supplement and this 
Bond Purchase Agreement and the form of the Bonds have been duly adopted by such 
Board of Directors and have not been modified, amended or repealed; and (F) the 
representations of the District herein and in the Indenture are true and correct in all 
material respects as of the Closing Date.  

 
(ii) A certificate, satisfactory in form and substance to the Purchaser, of one or 

more duly authorized officers of the Trustee, dated the Closing Date, as to the due 

Page 121 of 156



-9- 

acceptance, execution and delivery of the Indenture by the Trustee and the due 
authentication and delivery of the Bonds by the Trustee thereunder.  

 
(iii) The approving opinion, dated the Closing Date, of Bond Counsel, together 

with a reliance letter addressed to the Purchaser. 
 
(iv) An opinion, dated the Closing Date, addressed to the District and the 

Purchaser, of Colantuono, Highsmith & Whatley, PC, counsel to the District, in 
substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A.  

 
(v) A supplemental opinion of Bond Counsel, dated the Closing Date, addressed 

to the District and the Purchaser to the effect that: (A) this Bond Purchase Agreement 
has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the District and, assuming due 
authorization, execution and delivery by and validity against the Purchaser, is a valid 
and binding agreement of the District, subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, 
arrangement, moratorium, fraudulent conveyance and other laws relating to or affecting 
creditors’ rights, to the application of equitable principles and to the exercise of judicial 
discretion in appropriate cases in the State of California; and (B) the Bonds are not 
subject to the registration requirements of the Securities Act and the Indenture is exempt 
from qualification under the Trust Indenture Act.  

 
(vi) A certificate of the Trustee dated the Closing Date, signed by a duly 

authorized officer of the Trustee, and in form and substance satisfactory to the 
Purchaser, to the effect that: 

 
(A) the Trustee is a national banking association duly organized and 

existing under and by virtue of the laws of the United States of America 
authorized to carry out corporate trust powers and has all necessary power and 
authority to enter into and perform its duties under the Indenture and to 
authenticate the Bonds; 

 
(B) the representations of the Trustee in the Indenture are true and correct 

in all material respects as of the Closing Date; 
 
(C) to the best of its knowledge, no litigation is pending or threatened 

(either in state or federal courts) (1) to restrain or enjoin the authentication or 
delivery of any of the Bonds or the collection of revenues pledged under the 
Indenture, or (2) in any way contesting or affecting any authority for the 
authentication or delivery of the Bonds or the validity or enforceability of the 
Indenture; 

 
(D) the Trustee is duly authorized to authenticate and deliver the Bonds 

to the Purchaser upon instruction by the District pursuant to the terms of the 
Indenture, and the Indenture constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligation 
of the Trustee enforceable in accordance with its terms; 

 
(E) to the best of its knowledge, the execution and delivery of the 

Indenture and compliance with the provisions thereof, will not conflict with, or 
constitute a breach of or default, of the Trustee’s duties under said documents or 
any law, administrative regulation, court decree, resolution, charter, bylaws or 
other agreement to which the Trustee is subject or by which it is bound; and 

 
(F) the Bonds have been validly authenticated and delivered by the 

Trustee; 

Page 122 of 156



-10- 

 
(vii) The opinion of counsel to the Trustee, addressed to the Purchaser and the 

District, dated the Closing Date, to the effect that: 
 
(A) the Trustee has been duly organized and is validly existing in good 

standing as a national banking association under the laws of the United States of 
America, with full corporate power to enter into the Indenture and to accept the 
trust as provided therein, and to perform its obligations under the Indenture; 

 
(B) the Trustee has duly authorized, executed and delivered the 

Indenture and by all proper corporate action has authorized the acceptance of 
the trust of the Indenture; 

 
(C) assuming the due authorization, execution and delivery by the other 

parties to the Indenture, the Indenture constitutes the legally valid and binding 
agreement of the Trustee, enforceable against the Trustee in accordance with 
their respective terms, except as enforcement may be limited by bankruptcy, 
insolvency, moratorium or other similar laws or equitable principles relating to 
or limiting creditors’ rights generally; 

 
(D) the Bonds have been validly authenticated by the Trustee; and 
 
(E) to the best of such counsel’s knowledge, no authorization, approval, 

consent or order of any governmental agency or any other person or corporation 
is required for the valid authorization, execution and delivery of the Indenture 
by the Trustee or the authentication by the Trustee of the Bonds; 

 
(viii) A copy of the general resolution of the Trustee authorizing the execution 

and delivery of the Indenture; 
 
(ix) A tax certificate and agreement by the District in form and substance 

satisfactory to Bond Counsel; 
 
(x) A copy of the executed Information Returns for Tax-Exempt Governmental 

Bond Issues, Form 8038-G (current revision), and evidence of the filing thereof with the 
Internal Revenue Service regarding the Bonds; 

 
(xi) A certified copy of the resolution of the Board of Directors of the District 

approving and authorizing the execution and delivery of the Indenture, the Fifth 
Supplement and this Bond Purchase Agreement; 

 
(xii) The Certificate of the District required by Section 3.06(b) of the Indenture; 
 
(xiii) Original or certified copies of the documents required pursuant to Section 

3.06(c) of the Indenture; 
 
(xiv) The opinion of Bond Counsel required by Section 3.06(d) of the Indenture, 

addressed to the District, the Trustee and the Purchaser; 
 
(xv) The opinion of Bond Counsel as to the defeasance of the 2002 Bonds, 

addressed to the District, the Trustee and the Purchaser; and 
 
 (xvi) Such additional certificates, proceedings, opinions, instruments and other 

documents as the Purchaser may reasonably request in connection with the transactions 

Page 123 of 156



-11- 

contemplated by this Bond Purchase Agreement, including, but not limited to, such 
additional certificates, proceedings, instruments and opinions as the Purchaser may 
reasonably request to evidence the consummation of the transactions contemplated by 
this Bond Purchase Agreement and all matters relating to this Bond Purchase 
Agreement, the Bonds and the sale thereof, and the Indenture.  

 
If the District shall be unable to satisfy the conditions to the obligation of the Purchaser 

contained in this Bond Purchase Agreement, or if the obligation of the Purchaser shall be 
terminated for any reason permitted by this Bond Purchase Agreement, this Bond Purchase 
Agreement may be canceled by the Purchaser, and, upon such cancellation, neither the 
Purchaser nor the District shall be under any further obligation hereunder except as provided in 
Section 6 hereof.  

 
Section 6. Expenses. All reasonable expenses and costs of the District incident to the 

performance of its obligations in connection with the authorization, issuance and sale of the 
Bonds to the Purchaser, including printing costs, fees and expenses of the Trustee, fees and 
expenses of consultants and reasonable fees and expenses of Bond Counsel, counsel to the 
District and counsel to the Purchaser, shall be paid by the District. All fees and expenses to be 
paid by the District pursuant to this Bond Purchase Agreement may be paid from Bond 
proceeds to the extent permitted by the Indenture. All out-of-pocket expenses of the Purchaser, 
including travel and other expenses, CUSIP Service Bureau charges and California Debt 
Advisory Commission fees, shall be paid by the Purchaser. 

 
Section 7. Notices. Any notice or other communication to be given to the District under 

this Bond Purchase Agreement may be given by delivering the same in writing at the District’s 
address set forth above; any notice or other communication to be given to the Purchaser under 
this Bond Purchase Agreement may be given by delivering the same in writing to Umpqua 
Bank, 2998 Douglas Boulevard, Suite 100, Roseville, CA 95765, Attention: Mr. Trevor Mael, Vice 
President. The approval of the Purchaser when required hereunder or the determination of its 
satisfaction as to any document referred to herein shall be in writing signed by the Purchaser 
and delivered to the District.  

 
Section 8. Parties in Interest; Survival of Representations and Warranties. This Bond 

Purchase Agreement is made solely for the benefit of the District and the Purchaser (including 
the successors or assigns of the Purchaser), and no other person shall acquire or have any right 
hereunder or by virtue hereof. All the representations, warranties and agreements made by the 
District in this Bond Purchase Agreement shall remain operative and in full force and effect, 
regardless of (i) any investigations made by or on behalf of the Purchaser, (ii) delivery of and 
payment for the Bonds hereunder and (iii) any termination of this Bond Purchase Agreement.  

 
Section 9. Governing Law. This Bond Purchase Agreement shall be governed by the laws 

of the State of California.  
 
Section 10. Miscellaneous. The headings of the sections of this Bond Purchase 

Agreement are inserted for convenience only and shall not be deemed to be part hereof.  
 

Page 124 of 156



-12- 

Section 11. Counterparts. This Bond Purchase Agreement may be signed in two or more 
counterparts (including counterparts represented by facsimile copies and/or containing 
facsimile signatures); all of such counterparts, when signed by the parties, shall constitute but 
one single agreement.  

 
Very truly yours,  
 
UMPQUA BANK, as Purchaser 
 
 
 
By    
Name    
Title    

The foregoing is hereby accepted as of the 
date first written above.  
 
TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
By    

Crystal Betts 
Chief Financial Officer 

 

Page 125 of 156



Schedule A 
Page 1 

SCHEDULE A 
 

REDEMPTION PROVISIONS 
 
 

Optional Redemption of Bonds. The Bonds are subject to redemption prior to their stated 
maturity, at the option of the District, in whole or in part on any date, in inverse order of 
sinking fund payments dates, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount of Bonds 
called for redemption, together with interest accrued thereon to the date fixed for redemption, 
plus a premium as shown in the following table: 

 
Redemption Period Redemption Premium 

Closing Date through February 28, 2020 3% 
March 1, 2020, through February 28, 2023 2% 
March 1, 2023, through February 28, 2026 1% 
March 1, 2026, and thereafter 0% 

 
Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption of Bonds. The Bonds are subject to mandatory 

redemption on July 1 in each year on and after July 1, 2017, to and including July 1, 2032, from 
mandatory sinking fund installments to be paid by the District with respect to each such 
redemption date, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof to be redeemed, 
together with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption, without premium, as 
follows: 

 
 Mandatory  Principal  Mandatory  Principal 

Redemption Date  Amount to be Redemption Date  Amount to be 
(July 1) Redeemed (July 1) Redeemed 
2017  2025  
2018  2026  
2019  2027  
2020  2028  
2021  2029  
2022  2030  
2023  2031  
2024  2032†  

   
†Maturity 

 
 

Page 126 of 156



Exhibit A 
Page 1 

EXHIBIT A 
 

OPINION OF DISTRICT COUNSEL 
 
 
 

[Closing Date] 
 
 

Umpqua Bank 
2998 Douglas Boulevard, Suite 100 
Roseville, CA 95765 
 

Re: $___________ Tahoe Forest Hospital District (Placer and Nevada Counties, California) 
Variable Rate Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2017 

 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen:  
 

We have served as special counsel to the Tahoe Forest Hospital District (the “District”) in 
connection with the issuance by the District of its Tahoe Forest Hospital District (Placer and Nevada 
Counties, California) Variable Rate Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2017, in the aggregate principal 
amount of $___________ (the “Bonds”). 

 
The Bonds are issued pursuant to the provisions of section 53570 et seq. of the California 

Government Code and are issued under and secured by the Indenture of Trust, dated as of July 1, 1999, 
by and between the District and BNY Western Trust Company, as trustee, as amended and supplemented 
by that certain First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 1, 2002, by and between the District and 
BNY Western Trust Company, as trustee, as further amended and supplemented by that certain Second 
Supplemental Indenture, dated as of February 1, 2002, by and between the District and The Bank of New 
York Trust Company, N.A., as trustee, as further amended and supplemented by that certain Third 
Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 1, 2002, by and between the District and The Bank of New York 
Trust Company, N.A., as trustee, as further amended and supplemented by that certain Fourth 
Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 1, 2015, by and between the District and U.S. Bank National 
Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”), as further amended and supplemented by that certain Fourth 
Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 1, 2015, by and between the District and the Trustee. as further 
amended and supplemented by that certain Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March 1, 2017, by 
and between the District and the Trustee (collectively, the “Indenture”). The Bonds are being sold 
pursuant to a Bond Purchase Agreement, dated January 27, 2017 (the “Bond Purchase Agreement”), by 
and between the District and Umpqua Bank. Capitalized terms used herein, unless otherwise defined, 
shall have the meanings set forth in the Bond Purchase Agreement. 

 
In connection with this opinion, we have assumed the authenticity of all records, documents, and 

instruments submitted to us as originals, the genuineness of all signatures, the legal capacity of natural 
persons and the conformity to the originals of all records, documents, and instruments submitted to us as 
copies. We also have assumed that there are no facts or circumstances relating to you that might prevent 
you from enforcing any of the rights to which our opinion relates. We have based our opinion upon our 
review of the following records, documents and instruments: 

 
(a) A copy of the Indenture. 
 
(b) A copy of the Bond Purchase Agreement. 
 
(c) Resolution No. ____ (the “Resolution”), adopted by the District on January 26, 2017, 

authorizing the execution and delivery of the Bonds and the Transaction Documents (hereinafter 
defined). 

 

Page 127 of 156



Exhibit A 
Page 2 

The documents and instruments listed in items (a) through (d) above are collectively referred to 
herein as the “Transaction Documents.”  

 
Where our opinion relates to our “knowledge”, such knowledge is based upon our examination 

of the records, documents, instruments, and certificates enumerated or described above and the actual 
knowledge of attorneys in this firm who are currently involved in substantive legal representation of the 
District. With your consent, we have not examined any records of any court, administrative tribunal or 
other similar entity in connection with our opinion. Except as described herein, we have undertaken no 
investigation or verification of such matters. 

 
Based upon the foregoing and our examination of such questions of law as we have deemed 

necessary or appropriate for the purpose of this opinion, and subject to the limitations and qualifications 
expressed below, it is our opinion that: 

 
(1) The District is a local health care district duly existing under the laws of the State of California, 

has full legal right, power and authority to enter into the Indenture and, the Bond Purchase 
Agreement (collectively, the “Transaction Documents”), and to carry out and consummate all 
transactions contemplated by the Indenture and the Bond Purchase Agreement. 

 
(2) The Resolution was duly adopted at a meeting of the governing body of the District which was 

called and held pursuant to law and with all public notice required by law and at which a 
quorum was present and voted and is in full force and effect and has not been modified, 
amended or rescinded. 

 
(3) To our knowledge, there is no action, suit, proceeding or investigation at law or in equity before 

or by any court, public board or body pending or threatened against the District to restrain or 
enjoin the issuance or delivery of the Bonds or the collection of revenues pledged under the 
Indenture, contesting any authority for the issuance of the Bonds or the validity of the Bonds, the 
Indenture or the Bond Purchase Agreement, contesting the existence or powers of the District 
with respect to the issuance of the Bonds or the security therefor wherein an unfavorable 
decision, ruling or finding would adversely affect the transactions contemplated by the Indenture 
or the Bond Purchase Agreement or the validity of the Bonds. 

 
(4) The Bonds, the Indenture and the Bond Purchase Agreement have been duly authorized, 

executed and delivered by the District and, assuming due authorization, execution and delivery 
by the other parties thereto where applicable, are valid and binding limited obligations of the 
District enforceable in accordance with their terms. 

 
(5) The authorization, execution and delivery of the Transaction Documents by the District will not 

conflict with or constitute a breach or default, in any material respect, any law, administrative 
regulation, court decree, resolution, ordinance or other agreement to which the District is subject 
or by which it is bound. 

 
This opinion is limited to the federal laws of the United States of America and the laws of the 

State of California. We disclaim any opinion as to the laws of any other jurisdiction and we further 
disclaim any opinion as to any statute, rule, regulation, ordinance, order or other promulgation of any 
regional or local governmental body. This opinion is based upon the law in effect on the date hereof, and 
we assume no obligations to revise or supplement this opinion should such law be changed by legislative 
action, judicial decision, or otherwise. In connection with this opinion letter, we also have assumed the 
following: (a) consideration has been duly given under the Transaction Documents; (b) the District is the 
legal, beneficial and record owner of the collateral described in any Transaction Documents and the 
descriptions of collateral in the Transaction Documents sufficiently describe the collateral intended to be 
covered by such documents; (c) any lien documents are in suitable form, notarized if required, and duly 
filed or recorded with the appropriate government offices; (d) the Transaction Documents accurately 
describe the mutual understanding of the parties thereto, and that there are no oral or written statements 
that modify, amend, or vary, or purport to modify, amend, or vary, any of the terms of the Transaction 
Documents; (e) the information, factual matters, representations and warranties contained in the 
Transaction Documents, records, certificates and other documents we have reviewed are true, correct and 
complete; and (f) the other parties to Transaction Documents have the proper authority to engage in the 

Page 128 of 156



Exhibit A 
Page 3 

transactions contemplated thereunder and at all times have complied and will comply with the 
Transaction Documents and related documents and with all applicable requirements governing their 
actions and will act in a commercially reasonable manner. 

 
In connection with this opinion, we advise you that: 
 
A. Enforceability is subject (i) to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, arrangement, 

moratorium, and other laws of general applicability relating to or affecting creditors’ rights, (ii) to general 
principles of equity, whether such enforcement is considered in a proceeding in equity or at law, (iii) to 
limitations imposed by applicable law or public policy on the enforceability of the indemnification 
provisions, and (iv) to the qualification that certain waivers, procedures, remedies, and other provisions 
of the Transaction Documents may be unenforceable under or limited by applicable law. 

 
B. The enforceability of the Transaction Documents is further subject to the effect of general 

principles of equity. These principles include, without limitation, concepts of commercial reasonableness, 
materiality and good faith and fair dealing. These principles require the parties to act reasonably, in good 
faith and in a manner that is not arbitrary or capricious in the administration and enforcement of the 
Transaction Documents and will preclude them from invoking penalties for defaults that bear no 
reasonable relation to the damage suffered or that would otherwise work a forfeiture. 

 
C. The effectiveness of indemnities, rights of contribution, exculpatory provisions and waivers of 

the benefits of statutory provisions may be limited on public policy grounds. 
 
D. Section 1717 of the California Civil Code provides that, in any action on a contract where the 

contract specifically provides that attorneys’ fees and costs incurred to enforce that contract shall be 
awarded either to one of the parties or to the prevailing party, then the party who is determined to be the 
party prevailing in the action, whether that party is the party specified in the contract or not, shall be 
entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in addition to other costs. 

 
E. Any provisions of the Transaction Documents requiring that waivers must be in writing may 

not be binding or enforceable if a non-executory oral agreement has been created modifying any such 
provision or an implied agreement by trade practice or course of conduct has given rise to a waiver. 

 
F. Section 9109(d)17 of the California Uniform Commercial Code (the “Code”) provides that the 

secured transactions provisions of the Code do not apply to transfers by a government or governmental 
unit, and, therefore, the rights and remedies of the Trustee under the Transaction Documents which 
purport to incorporate rights and remedies under the Code may not be enforceable and as such, we 
express no opinion on such matters. 

 
G. Any provisions of the Transaction Documents regarding another party’s right to apply 

proceeds of fire or other casualty insurance policies or awards of damages in condemnation proceedings 
against the District’s secured obligations will not be enforceable unless application of such proceeds or 
damages is reasonably necessary to protect such security interests. 

 
H. We assume that in the enforcement of any lien documents, all parties will act in accordance 

with applicable statutory and other legal requirements, including applicable case law and that 
enforcement of rights or remedies thereunder may be limited when imposing fees and charges in the 
event of default, upon acceleration of the District’s obligations for transfers of interests, leases, or grants 
of junior encumbrances, attempting to secure a deficiency claim before exhausting the secured property 
or other remedies, among other things. 

 
I. We have further relied on certain representations, warranties and covenants of the District in 

the Transaction Documents. Any variations may affect the opinions we are giving. 
 
J. In connection with our opinion, we have not reviewed and express no opinion on (i) financial 

statements or covenants, financial or audit reports or the consents related thereto or similar provisions 
requiring financial calculations or determinations, (ii) provisions relating to the occurrence of a “material 
adverse effect” or similar words, or (iii) parol evidence bearing on interpretation or construction. 

 

Page 129 of 156



Exhibit A 
Page 4 

We express no opinion as to: (a) the priority of any lien or security interest created, or purported 
to be created, by any of the Transaction Documents or the enforceability of any lien in the real property of 
the District; (b) any securities, tax, anti-trust, land use, export, safety, environmental, hazardous 
materials, choice of law, insurance company or banking laws, rules or regulations; (c) applicable interest 
rate limitations of California law for loans or forbearances; or (d) the effect on the District’s obligations, 
and any other party’s rights, under the Transaction Documents of laws relating to fraudulent transfers 
and fraudulent obligations set forth in Sections 544 and 548 of the federal Bankruptcy Code and Sections 
3439 et seq. of the California Civil Code. 

 
In rendering our opinion, we are expressing no opinion on the validity of the Bonds. 
 
We furnish this opinion as special counsel to the District and only the addressee and Quint & 

Thimmig LLP may rely upon it. This letter shall not be used, quoted, distributed, circulated or relied 
upon by any other person or entity for any purpose, without our prior written consent. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 

Page 130 of 156



TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT •10121 PINE AVENUE • TRUCKEE, CA 96161 • 530/587-6011 

INCLINE VILLAGE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL • 880 ALDER AVENUE • INCLINE VILLAGE, NEVADA 89451-8215 •775/833-4100 

  Board Executive Summary 

 By: Janet Van Gelder, RN, DNP, CPHQ 
 Director of Quality and Regulations 

  DATE:   January 2, 2017 

QUALITY REPORT: Quality & Regulation Review 

ISSUE: 

The Board of Directors (BOD) of Tahoe Forest Health System (TFHS) has the ultimate responsibility 
for the quality of care and services provided throughout the system.  The BOD assures that a 
planned and systematic process is in place for measuring, analyzing and improving the quality and 
safety of the Health System activities.  

Quality, grounded in patient safety, is a value and a discipline of knowledge, skills and practices to 
achieve excellence in products, services and environments based on the requirements, 
perceptions and future needs of those served.  The foundations for quality include evidence-based 
medicine and practice, relevant and rigorous measurement, teamwork and transparency, 
detection and reductions of errors and defects, and design of reliable systems of care to prevent 
harm, eliminate waste and unnecessary complexity in all forms (Blueprint for Advancing Quality & 
Patient Safety in California, Hospital Quality Institute, May 2014). 

Quality principles include leadership; customer focus with the patient and family as the primary 
customers; results and outcome focus; shared meaning and value; evidence based practice; 
statistical thinking; data based decision making; systems or process flow perspective; continual 
improvement and learning; a just and fair culture; open sharing of data; continual pursuit of 
eliminating waste and adding value; informatics solutions for data capture, clinical decision 
support and information transfer; teamwork; methods, tools, and common language to accelerate 
learning (Blueprint for Advancing Quality & Patient Safety in California, Hospital Quality Institute, 
May 2014).  

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

Training and education are essential to promote a culture of quality within the Tahoe Forest 
Health System.  All employees and Medical Staff receive education about performance 
improvement upon initial orientation.  Employees and Medical Staff receive additional annual 
training on various topics related to performance improvement.  This presentation will provide a 
brief overview of the Quality Assurance/Performance Improvement plan. 

ACTION REQUESTED:    

There is no action required.  This is an educational presentation. 

Page 131 of 156



Tahoe Forest Health System 
 Board of Directors    

Quality & Regulations 

 Janet Van Gelder, RN, DNP, CPHQ 

Page 132 of 156



Quality Program Building Blocks 

• Mission 

• Vision 

• Values 

• Five Foundations of Excellence 

• Strategic Plan 

• Federal and State Regulations 

 

Page 133 of 156



Quality Assurance / Performance Improvement 
(QA/PI) Plan 

• Framework for promoting and sustaining Quality & PI to improve the: 
– quality of care 
– enhance organizational performance 

• Goals include 
– proactively reduce risk to our patients by eliminating or reducing risk factors that 

contribute to adverse events and/or outcomes 
– provide high quality care and services 

• Accomplished through the support and involvement of:  
– BOD, Administration, Medical Staff, Management, & Staff 

• Utilize a collaborative approach that supports:  
– innovation, data management, PI, proactive risk assessment 
– commitment to customer satisfaction & patient safety 
– Just Culture principles  

 

Page 134 of 156



Key Quality Initiatives for 2017 
• Top decile quality of care and patient satisfaction metric results  

• Support Patient and Family Centered Care  

• Sustain a Just Culture philosophy that promotes patient safety, 
openness, & transparency 

• Promote lean principles to improve processes, reduce waste, and 
eliminate inefficiencies 

• Implement Epic electronic health record and integrate medical 
services at all levels of the organization  

• Facilitate integrated continuum of care management system  

• Ensure Patient Safety across the entire Health System 

• Achieve Public Hospital Redesign and Incentives in Medi-Cal 
(PRIME) Project Initiatives  

Page 135 of 156



Quality: Board of Directors 

• ultimate responsibility for the quality of care and services provided 
throughout the system  

• assure that a planned and systematic process is in place for measuring, 
analyzing and improving the quality and safety through the following: 

– Delegate the responsibility for developing, implementing, and maintaining performance 
improvement activities to administration, medical staff, management, and employees;   

– Recognize that performance improvement is a continuous, never-ending process, and 
therefore they will provide the necessary resources to carry out this philosophy;   

– Provide direction for the organization’s improvement activities through the 
development of strategic initiatives;  

– Evaluate the organization’s effectiveness in improving quality through reports from the 
various Board Committees, Medical Executive Committee and Medical Staff Quality 
Committee 

 

 

 

 Page 136 of 156



Quality: Internal  
Reporting Mechanisms 

Departmental 
Staff PI 

Performance 
Improvement 

Committee (PIC) 

Medical Staff 
Quality 

Committee 

Medical 
Executive 

Committee 

TFHD Board 
Quality 

Committee 

TFHD Board Of 
Directors 

Page 137 of 156



Quality Principles  

• S=Safe 

• T=Timely 

• E=Effectively 

• E=Efficient 

• E=Equitable 

• Patient Centered Care 

 

Page 138 of 156



Scientific Method for Achieving 
Performance Improvement 

Page 139 of 156



Quality: Mandatory  
External Reporting 

Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) 
• Quality Health Care Indicators 
• Home Health Consumer Assessment of Providers and Systems (HHCAPs) 
• Hospice Quality Reporting Program (HQRP) 
• Minimum Data Sets (MDS) 
• Outcome & Assessment Information Set (OASIS) 
• EHR Incentive Program (Meaningful Use) 
• Physician Quality Reporting System (PQRS) 

State of Nevada 
• Trauma Registry 
• Immunization records 

State of California 
• Utilizes the National Healthcare Safety Network (NHSN) 
• Office of Statewide Health Planning & Development (OSHPD) 
 

 
 

Page 140 of 156



Quality: Voluntary  
 External Reporting 

• California Nursing Outcome Coalition (CALNOC) 

• Hospital Consumer Assessment of Healthcare 
Providers & Systems (HCAHPS) 

• Hospital Compare (core measures) 

• Outcome Based Quality Improvement (QBQI)  

Page 141 of 156



Regulatory: Licensing and Certification 

• Health Care Facilities Accreditation (HFAP) 

– Deemed accreditation from CMS 

– Hospitals, Clinics, Cancer Center 

• Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) 

– California Department of Health Services conducts 
CMS survey & Title 22 survey 

• ECC SNF, Home Health, Hospice 

• Nevada Bureau of Health Care Quality & 
Compliance (HCQC) 
– IVCH, Home Health, Hospice 

 
Page 142 of 156



 
What is Health Care Facilities 

Accreditation (HFAP)? 
 • nationally recognized healthcare facility 

accreditation organization, with deeming 
authority from the Centers for Medicare and 
Medicaid Services (CMS) 

• provide accreditation to all hospitals, ambulatory 
care/surgical facilities, mental health facilities, 
physical rehabilitation facilities, clinical 
laboratories, and critical access hospitals  

• triennial unannounced survey of the CMS 
Conditions or Participation (COP) standards 

Page 143 of 156



Quality & Regulation Staff 

• Peter Taylor, MD, Quality Medical Director 

• Janet Van Gelder, RN, DNP, CPHQ, Director of 
Quality & Regulations (ext. 6629)  

• Carl Blumberg, RN, MHS, CPHRM, Patient Safety 
Risk Manager (ext. 6637) 

• Trish Foley, LMFT, Patient Advocate (ext. 6567) 

• Whitney Robinson, MPH, Quality Specialist (ext. 
3272) 

 

 
Page 144 of 156



Page 145 of 156



   

WINTER STORM 2017  

BACKGROUND 

A winter blizzard was forecasted for January 10, 2017 lasting overnight and reducing in strength 
throughout the day, January 11, 2017.  Heavy winds and snow caused a tree to fall which damaged a 
major power artery and the whole Tahoe-Truckee area lost power on January 10, 2017 at 21:48. The 
hospital emergency generators at both Tahoe Forest Hospital and Incline Village Community Hospitals 
started and transferred power into the hospital for approximately 16 1/2 hours at Tahoe Forest and 
approximately 12 3/4 hours at Incline Village.  The Medical Office Building’s generator required manual 
activation which occurred at approximately 5 am on January 11th. The possibility of this type of event 
was anticipated and TFHD scheduled extra Engineering staff to be on-call through the night on January 
10th.  The Emergency Department and hospital clinical areas were uneventful from the initial power 
outage through the night. Come morning, administration accessed the impacts for both hospitals and 
declared a Code Triage External Level One as all departments in the hospital system were affected.  
After the initial activation and risk assessments were made the incident increased to a Code Triage 
External Level 2. 

SITUATION SUMMARY 

 TFH systems that were down ( 1 patient transferred to Reno): 
 CT  
 MRI  
 Mammography 
 Nuclear Medicine 

 
 All surgeries except emergencies were cancelled while hospital on generator power. No 

emergency surgeries required. 
 

 All hospital clinical departments were staffed. 
 

 Patient census: 
o ICU:  4 patients 
o MedSurg:  9 patients 
o OB:  2 Moms plus infants 

 
 Cancer Center Radiation Oncology open.  Oncology transfusion patients treated in ICU.  

 
 Non-clinical departments closed.    

 
 All MSC clinics closed.    

o IMCARD (Lombard’s office):  no backup power capabilities.  Medications were relocated. 
 

 Retail pharmacy opened on January 11th from 11 am to 4 pm.  This was the only local pharmacy 
that was open. 
 

 Both TFH & IVCH had backup generator fuel levels to last greater than the 4 days regulatory 
requirements. 

Page 146 of 156



   

 
 Food, equipment, and medical supplies evaluated and good. 

 
 Increased levels of Community members at TFH for food, warmth and use of power to charge 

electronic devices. 
 

ACTIVATION 

1. Activate IC Procedures on January 11, 2017 at 0900. 
2. Support departments by providing additional resources needed to maintain operations. 
3. Established housing options to support staffing 
4. Confirm generator functionality. 
5. Troubleshoot equipment operation. 

 

DE-ACTIVATION  

1. IVCH power was restored on 1/11/17 at approximately 1030. 
2. TFH Main Hospital and MSC clinic power was restored on 1/11/17 at 14:15. 
3. De-Activate Command Center procedures on 1/11/17 at 14:16. 
4. Ongoing issues/resolutions with adjacent hospital properties as follows: 

a. Hospice House (10083 Lake Ave):  closed until 1/18/17 due to flooding and tree 
concerns. 

b. Lake Street House (10145 Lake Ave): closed until further notice.  Issues: 
i. Flooding 
ii. No power 
iii. Trees causing unsafe conditions 

c. Van Gundy House (10151 Lake Ave): closed until 1/19/17.  Unsafe trees were removed. 
d. Red House (10999 Spring Lane):  closed until further notice due to unsafe tree 

concerns. 
e. North Tahoe Orthopedics:  Power restored on 1/12/17. 
f. Child Care Center:  Power restored on 1/12/17. 
g. Quality & Regulations (10977 Spring lane):  water was turned off until 1/12/17 when it 

was determined the source of water flow on the side of the house was from an I80 
drainage pipe.  

THINGS THAT WENT WELL 

1. Dietary was well supplied to serve TFH staff and Community. 
2. Communication between all TFHD departments.  
3. Risk assessments in each area. 
4. Facilities remained on-site overnight to troubleshoot issues. 
5. IC Cart was well organized. 
6. Communication with the Tahoe Donner Public Utilities District (TDPUD). 
7. Pharmacy & Material Management supplies were sufficient. 
8. Retail Pharmacy opened to the public while all other local pharmacies remained closed. 
9. Staffing maintained to support clinical services 
10. Contracted services and Facilities combined efforts to ensure good snow removal to both 

hospital locations. 

Page 147 of 156



   

 

 

 

Page 148 of 156



Tahoe Forest Hospital District 
Board of Directors – 2017 Committee Assignments 

 
 

Officers: 
President – Chuck Zipkin, MD 
Vice President – Greg Jellinek, MD 
Secretary – Randy Hill 
Treasurer – Dale Chamblin 

 
2017 Board Committee Appointments (Chair in bold): 
Finance Committee:   Chamblin / Jellinek Staff Rep:  Crystal Betts 
Personnel Committee:  Wong / Chamblin Staff Rep:  Jayne O’Flanagan, Alex MacLennan 
Community Benefit:    Zipkin / Hill  Staff Rep:  Karen Gancitano 
Quality Committee:    Wong / Zipkin  Staff Rep:  Janet Van Gelder, Peter Taylor MD 
Governance Committee:   Jellinek / Hill  Staff Rep:  Ted Owens 
 
Med Tech:    Jellinek 
COC:     Chamblin 
IVCH Foundation:   Zipkin 
TFHS Foundation:   Chamblin 
Bioethics:    Wong  
TIRHR:     Hill  
Joint Conference:   Zipkin / Jellinek 
OAC:     Hill 
Legislative Ad Hoc:    Wong 

Page 149 of 156



Page 1 of 2 
 

  
QUALITY COMMITTEE 

AGENDA 
Monday, January 23, 2017 at 11:30 a.m. 

Tahoe Conference Room, Tahoe Forest Hospital 
10054 Pine Avenue, Truckee, CA 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ROLL CALL 

Alyce Wong, RN, Chair; Charles Zipkin, M.D., Board Member 
 

3. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA 
 

4. INPUT – AUDIENCE 
This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Committee on items which are not on the agenda.  
Please state your name for the record.  Comments are limited to three minutes.  Written comments should be 
submitted to the Board Clerk 24 hours prior to the meeting to allow for distribution.  Under Government Code 
Section 54954.2 – Brown Act, the Committee cannot take action on any item not on the agenda.  The Committee 
may choose to acknowledge the comment or, where appropriate, briefly answer a question, refer the matter to staff, 
or set the item for discussion at a future meeting. 

 
5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF: 11/22/2016 ...................................................................... ATTACHMENT  
 
6. ITEMS FOR COMMITTEE DISCUSSION AND/OR RECOMMENDATION  
6.1. Quality Committee Charter and Goals 2017 ............................................................. ATTACHMENT 

Review and approve the Quality Committee Charter and proposed 2017 goals.   
 

6.2. Quality Assurance Process Improvement (QA/PI) Plan……………………………………………..ATTACHMENT 
Review and approve the QA/PI Plan 2017.  
 

6.3. Patient & Family Centered Care (PFCC)  
6.3.1. Patient & Family Advisory Council Update  ................................................. ATTACHMENT 

  An update will be provided related to the activities of the Patient and Family Advisory Council 
(PFAC). 

    6.2.2    Patient Experience Presentation  
Identify patients that may be interested in sharing their healthcare story at an upcoming TFHD 
Board of Directors (BOD) or BOD Quality Committee meeting. 

 
6.3 Patient Satisfaction Survey Process  ............................................................................ ATTACHMENT 

Review the patient satisfaction surveys and discuss if we should send surveys to our patients via 
electronic mail instead of the postal service. Discuss the status of the date of service and service 
provided on the Outpatient Survey to remind patients which service they are rating.   
 

6.4 Healthcare Facilities Accreditation Program (HFAP) Survey 

Page 150 of 156



QUALITY COMMITTEE – Agenda Continued 
Monday, January 23, 2017 

 

*Denotes material (or a portion thereof) may be distributed later. 
 
Note:  It is the policy of Tahoe Forest Hospital District to not discriminate in admissions, provisions of services, hiring, training and employment 
practices on the basis of color, national origin, sex, religion, age or disability including AIDS and related conditions. 
 
Equal Opportunity Employer. The meeting location is accessible to people with disabilities.  Every reasonable effort will be made to 
accommodate participation of the disabled in all of the District’s public meetings.  If particular accommodations for the disabled are needed 
(i.e., disability-related aids or other services), please contact the Executive Assistant at 582-3481 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Provide an update on preparation for the unannounced triennial HFAP accreditation survey in the 
spring of 2017.   
 

6.5 Medical Staff Quality Committee (MSQAC) 
Discuss the option of having two Board members attend the open session bimonthly MSQAC meeting 
instead of having a separate Board Quality Committee meeting.   
 

6.6 Quadruple Aim  ....................................................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
6.6.1 Sikka, R., Morath, J., & Leape, L. The Quadruple Aim: care, health, cost and meaning in work. 

BMJ Quality & Safety (2015) 
6.6.2    Feeley D, Swensen SJ. Restoring joy in work for the healthcare workforce. Healthcare 

Executive. 2016 Sept; 31(5):70-71. 

While burnout in the health professions is alarmingly high, restoring joy in work is more than just 
reducing burnout. This article describes four key steps that leaders can take to restore, foster, and 
nurture joy in the healthcare workforce.  Discuss plan to obtain physician and staff engagement 
information with a goal to improve the experience of providing care. 
 

6.7 Board Quality Education  ......................................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
The committee will review and discuss topics for future Board quality education. 
  

7. REVIEW FOLLOW UP ITEMS / BOARD MEETING RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

8. NEXT MEETING DATE  
The date and time of the next committee meeting, Tuesday, March 14, 2017, at 12:00 p.m. will 
be confirmed. 
  

9. ADJOURN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 151 of 156

http://www.ihi.org/Topics/Joy-In-Work/Pages/default.aspx


 

. 
  Page 1 of 2 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 

AGENDA 
     Wednesday, January 25, 2017 at 8:00 a.m.  

Foundation Conference Room, Tahoe Forest Health System 
10976 Donner Pass Road, Truckee, CA 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. ROLL CALL 
Dale Chamblin, Chair; Greg Jellinek, M.D., Board Member 
 

3. CLEAR THE AGENDA/ITEMS NOT ON THE POSTED AGENDA 
 

4. INPUT – AUDIENCE 
This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Committee on items which are not on the agenda.  Please state 
your name for the record.  Comments are limited to three minutes.  Written comments should be submitted to the Board Clerk 24 
hours prior to the meeting to allow for distribution.  Under Government Code Section 54954.2 – Brown Act, the Committee cannot 
take action on any item not on the agenda.  The Committee may choose to acknowledge the comment or, where appropriate, briefly 
answer a question, refer the matter to staff, or set the item for discussion at a future meeting. 

 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF: 10/24/2016 ...................................................................... ATTACHMENT  
 

6. ITEMS FOR COMMITTEE DISCUSSION AND/OR RECOMMENDATION  
6.1. Financial Reports 

6.1.1. Financial Report – November 2016 .................................................................. ATTACHMENT 
6.1.2. Financial Report – December 2016 Quarterly Packet ...................................... ATTACHMENT 
6.1.3. Quarterly Review of Separate Entities .............................................................. ATTACHMENT 
6.1.4. Quarterly Review of Payor Mix ......................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
6.1.5. TIRHR Expenditure Report ................................................................................ ATTACHMENT 
6.1.6. Truckee Surgery Center LLC - Oct – Dec 2016 Financial Statements .............. ATTACHMENT* 

6.2. 2002 Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bond Refinancing 
The Finance Committee will review documents related to the refunding of the District’s 2002 Variable 
Rate Demand Revenue Bonds. 

6.2.1. Debt Management Policy ................................................................................. ATTACHMENT 
6.2.2. Debt Management – Resolution 2017-01 ........................................................ ATTACHMENT 
6.2.3. Variable Rate Refunding Revenue Bond Finance Schedule .............................. ATTACHMENT 
6.2.4. Variable Rate Pricing Comparisons ................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
6.2.5. Umpqua Bank Proposal..................................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
6.2.6. Umpqua Bank Credit Approval Letter ............................................................... ATTACHMENT 
6.2.7. Fifth Supplemental Indenture of Trust ............................................................. ATTACHMENT 
6.2.8. Fifth Supplemental Indenture – Resolution 2017-02 ....................................... ATTACHMENT 
6.2.9. Bond Purchase Agreement ............................................................................... ATTACHMENT 

 
7. REVIEW FOLLOW UP ITEMS / BOARD MEETING RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

8. AGENDA INPUT FOR NEXT FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING ......................................... ATTACHMENT 
 

9. NEXT MEETING DATE ...................................................................................................... ATTACHMENT 
 
 

Page 152 of 156



FINANCE COMMITTEE 
AGENDA 

  Wednesday, January 25, 2017 at 8:00 a.m. 
 

 

*Denotes material (or a portion thereof) may be distributed later. 
 
Note:  It is the policy of Tahoe Forest Hospital District to not discriminate in admissions, provisions of services, hiring, training and employment 
practices on the basis of color, national origin, sex, religion, age or disability including AIDS and related conditions. 
 
Equal Opportunity Employer. The meeting location is accessible to people with disabilities.  Every reasonable effort will be made to 
accommodate participation of the disabled in all of the District’s public meetings.  If particular accommodations for the disabled are needed 
(i.e., disability-related aids or other services), please contact the Executive Assistant at 582-3481 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 

 

10. ADJOURN 

Page 153 of 156



TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL DISTRICT •10121 PINE AVENUE • TRUCKEE, CA 96161 • 530/587-6011 

INCLINE VILLAGE COMMUNITY HOSPITAL • 880 ALDER AVENUE • INCLINE VILLAGE, NEVADA 89451-8215 •775/833-4100 

 

 
 

   
  Board Informational Report 

 
By: Harry Weis  DATE:  January 16, 2017
 CEO 
 
 
I want to thank our entire team for the tremendous hard work they have performed during the 
Holiday Season and also during the return of a more normal winter.  The community came out 
in large numbers last week to visit TFHS as there was no electricity, no stores, restaurants or 
gas in the region for a period of time. 
 
We are targeting to have an in-house team available by the end of January to answer all 
phone calls for the health system not answered via our computer software directional system.  
We believe this will be a quality improvement for all relative to how our phones are answered. 
 
We would especially like to acknowledge Jayne O’Flanagan’s 43 years of dedicated service to 
Tahoe Forest Health System, covering many positions in our health system and for the last 
many years serving as our Chief Human Resource Officer.  We are asking Alex MacLennan to 
serve as the Interim CHRO until a permanent CHRO is named. 
 
Dr. Peter Taylor has agreed to be the sole shareholder for Tahoe Forest Medical Group, our 
“friendly Professional Corporation” which will allow us to employ physicians should they ask to 
be employed instead of having an independent contractor relationship with us.  This will take 
us a few months to put all of the details together. 
 
Related to our Physician Services makeover, one of our 6 critical strategies, we are pursuing 
applications for 3 of the 4 Rural Health Clinic (RHC) sites we would like to have operational.  
These three are first in our 3 story medical office building across the street, our IM/Cardiology 
office practice and our second floor clinic at IVCH.  The fourth RHC site will be in our Cancer 
Center.  
 
Also related to our Physician Services makeover, we are gearing up to meet with each of the 
physicians who may be relocated to a more appropriate space to address current and future 
space needs. 
 
Tahoe Forest Healthcare Services, our management service organization, began operations 
smoothly on 1/1/17 and had its first payroll on 1/13/17. 
 
Additionally regarding our Physician Services makeover, we are now starting to move on a 
timeline to fully affiliate our independent OB/GYN group with Tahoe Forest Health System.   
 
In our critical “just do it” strategy regarding improving financial performance, Karli Epstein has 
accepted the Executive Director of our Incline Village Community Hospital Foundation.  She 
has great philanthropic experience.   

Page 154 of 156



We are working to transform both of our philanthropic foundations as philanthropy is a critical 
cash flow resource for great healthcare systems. 
 
We are actively looking to recruit a full time Neurologist, GI Specialist, and two Family 
Practitioners.  We are reviewing several GI candidates now. 
 
Our leadership team is focusing on planning and strategy as we prepare to meet with the 
Board of Directors in February to review where we have been and what may need refinement 
in the future. 
 
We will be bring forward changes in healthcare to the Board as they surface.  We continue to 
monitor all federal and state changes and expect that we will be more active and vigilant in the 
coming months and years in this area. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 155 of 156



Date:  __________________________________________

Exceed 

Expectations

Meets 

Expectations

Below 

Expectations

1
Overall, the meeting agenda is clear and includes 

appropriate topics for Board consideration
5 4 3 2 1

2
The consent agenda includes appropriate topics and 

worked well
5 4 3 2 1

3
The Board packet & handout materials were sufficiently 

clear and at a ‘governance level’
5 4 3 2 1

4 Discussions were on target 5 4 3 2 1

5 Board members were prepared and involved 5 4 3 2 1

6  The education was relevant and helpful 5 4 3 2 1

7 Board focused on issues of strategy and policy 5 4 3 2 1

8 Objectives for meeting were accomplished 5 4 3 2 1

9  Meeting ran on time 5 4 3 2 1

Please provide further feedback here: 

Tahoe Forest Hospital District

Board of Directors Meeting Evaluation Form

G:\Admin\BoardofDirectors\Forms\MeetingEvaluationForm

Page 156 of 156


	Coverpage
	Agenda
	AGENDA
	2017-01-26 Regular BOD Meeting_REVISED FINAL Agenda.pdf

	ITEMS 1 - 11 See Agenda
	12. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS
	12.1. Retirement of Chief Human Resources Officer, Jayne O'Flanagan

	13. MEDICAL STAFF REPORT
	13.1. Medical Staff Report.pdf

	14. CONSENT CALENDAR
	14.1. Approval of Meeting Minutes
	2016-12-15 Regular BOD Meeting_DRAFT Minutes.pdf

	14.2. Financial Report
	14.2.1. Financial Report - November 2016.pdf
	14.2.2. Financial Report - December 2016.pdf

	14.3. Staff Reports
	14.3.1. CIO Board Report - January 2017.pdf
	14.3.2. CNO Board Report - January 2017.pdf
	14.3.3. COO Board Report - January 2017.pdf


	15. ITEMS FOR BOARD ACTION
	15.1. 2002 Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bond Refinancing
	15.1.1. Debt Management Policy Resolution 2017-01.pdf
	15.1.2. Debt Management Policy - ABD-25.pdf
	15.1.3. Proposal - Umpqua Bank Signed.pdf
	15.1.4. Credit Approval Letter.pdf
	15.1.5. Fifth Supplemental Indenture of Trust.pdf
	15.1.6. Fifth Supplemental Indenture of Trust Resolution 2017-02.pdf
	15.1.7. Bond Purchase Agreement.pdf


	16. ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION
	16.1. TFHD Quality Program Overview.pdf
	16.2. Disaster Level I Activation Summary.pdf
	16.3. Board of Directors 2017 Commiittee Appointments.pdf

	17. DISCUSSION OF CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS PULLED, IF NECESSARY
	18. BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS/RECOMMENDATIONS FOR DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION
	18.1. 2017-01-23 Board Quality Committee_Agenda.pdf
	18.2. 2017-01-25 Finance Committee_FINAL Agenda.pdf

	19. CEO INFORMATIONAL REPORT
	19.1. CEO Board Report - January 2017.pdf

	ITEMS 20 - 25: See Agenda
	26. MEETING EFFECTIVENESS ASSESSMENT
	MeetingEvaluationForm.pdf


